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PRATRIE FARM ASSISTANCE ACT INQUIRY

ORDER IN COUNCIL PC 1963-1896

INTRODUCT ION

It would appear desirable that as én introduction
to this report, the operation of The Prairie Farm Assistance
Act be fully outlined, as it has a direct bearing on the
manner in which the questions submitted to the Commission
Qere considered and the concluﬁioné.ﬁeré reacheﬂ.r

The Prairie Farm Assistance Act does not provide
an insurance scheme for farmers as individuals, It is,

. .
in fact, a program for providing assistance where a general
crop failure has occurred in a municipality or a local improve-
ment district. No farmer who has a poor crop is entitled to
payment unless he is situated in an area in which a crop
failure has occurred.

In order to provide the funds required for the
payment of awards under the Act, all farmers who may be
eligible for an award are levied one percent of the value of
all grain sold through the regular channels of ;he grain trade.

_If at any time the fund is insufficient to make payment urder
the Act, the Min;ster of Finance may use unappropriated monies
in the Consolidated Revenue Fund, with the approvél of the
Governor in Council, in making an advance to the program of
the amount necessary to meet the deficit, The funds required
to make the awards under the Act.are, therefore, provided by
the farmers of the spring wheat area of western Canada,

augmented, if necessary, by the taxpayers of Canada,




When the municipality, or in the case of a local

improvement district, the Government of the Province, considers
an area within the municipality or local improvement district
has suffered a crop failvre entitling it to benefit by the )
provisions of the Act, an application for assistance is sub-
mitted to che Prairie Farm Assistance Director., This is supported
by full information with respect to the estimated average yields
of wheat in the township, and if applicable, to adjacent areas,
for which the application is made. This application must be
made before any individual farmer can raceive payment under
the Act,
T T T Ivicases where 'a township is foéund to be afieligible v
area, there may be added to this township a section of land
or more, having a side that lies along the boundary of the
eligible township, Such adjacent sections of land may be
declared eligibleé for awards as though they were complete
townships. In cases where an area has been declared eligible
for awards, then a rectaagular block of sections of land out-
side such area, comprising an area of not less tpan one-third
of a township in size, but not necessarily contained within
the boundaries of a given township, may be declared eligible
for awards as though it were a complete township.
Upon receipt of the applicati;n the Director causes
inspections to be made in the area affected, These inspections
are undertaken by the field staff of the various Supervisory
Districts, Their work is directed by a resident Supervisor
wh& hires, under the authority of the Director, the sataff

needed to carry out the necessary work, Inspectors, checkers

and office assistants undertake the work required.

hY
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In the area in which the crop failure has occurred,

an inspection must be made of all farmlands, and this is
recoraed on a form called the Cultivated Acreage Report
(hereafter referred to as a CAR), This report gives all in-
formation as to the crop actually harvested by the farmer in
the particular year., So that there vill be no guestion of
the accuracy of the report given, questions are asked and
answers tabulated under the direction of the Inspector, and
the form is signed by the farmer and by the Inspector, It ig
the duty of the Inspeétor to see that correct information is
secured from the farmer to determine the actual yield of grain
on each parcel of land farmed and operated by the farmer.

It is necessary to be sure that the farmer accurately
discloses the information required, because not only is his
own award dependerit upon the accuracy of his report, bpt the
awvard of another farmer within the area might be affected by -~ - - -
a false or incorrect report.

The successful and efficient administration of the
Act is dependent almost entirely on the accuraéy of the work

of the Supervisors and Inspectors, If Supervisors and Inspectors

__fail to carry out thoir duties properly and efficiently, it is

very difficult indeed for the Administration to ascertain
irregularities or inaccuracies occurring in these reports, -

There is established under the Act a Board of Review
consisting of three persons appointed by Governor in Council.
This Board determines the eligibility of an area for an award
and any question concerning the eligibility of any farmer or

class of farmers to receive an award under the Act. The
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decision of the majority of the members of the Board constitutes
the decision of thLe Board, and any decision or determination
of the Board is final. | o
When the iﬁspections have been completed by the
Inspectors and the CARs have been checked under the direction
of the Supervisor, the CARs are forwarded to the Director with
maps prepared by the Inspectors covering the areas in which
inspections have been made. The staff at the Regina office
then prepare from this information, ledger yield sheets for
submisgsion to the Board of Review, There are occasions when
inspections indicate that an area may not be eligible because
{ the yields are much higher than was originally anticipated, .
In these éases very often the matter is referred back to the
] municipality concerned and a withdrawal of the application is
secured, This, of course, is done to avoid the necessity of
{ rrocessing an area in which there is no possibility of an award
to the farmer being made. This is done before the matter is
referred tz the Board of Review, However, if additional
information recejived would indicate the desirability of carrying
1 out inspections in order to cle»r contiguous sections lying
alongside. eligible lands, the Administration then proceeds to
complete the necessary inspections in such townships,
After all matters requiring a decision of the Board
of Review have been determined as required under the Act, . |
payment requisitions are submitted to the Regina Treasury
Office of the Department of Finénce and cheques are issued

to the individual farmers for the amount of the award,
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The basis of the award is determined by taking into consider-
ation the avérage yield of the township or smaller area,
either under Section 3, Section 6 (a) or 6 (b) of the Act,

In calculating the average yield in a township, or other
eligible area, for an award, the entire yield of the town-
ship or area shall be included. But, in calculating the
average yield in an eligible township or other area for the
purpose of ascertaining the amount of the award, there shall
be excluded the yield on all sections in the township having
a yield of 12 or more bushels per acre, No award shall be
made in respect of thcse sections where the average yield is
12 or more bushels per acre. This means that a farmer, whose
land is situated in a section which, overall, .ios a yield of
12 bushels or more per acre, is not entitled to an award.

{ As an example of this, a farmer who has a yield of only

four bushels per acre on a half-section would not be ent:itled
to an award if the other half-section has a yield of 20 bushels
per acre,

The maximum number of acres for whiéh an award may
be paid to an individual farmer is 200, and he cannot receive
an award for more than one-half of his cﬁltivated acreage,

The award paid to a farmer varies with the amount of the yield.
The maximum award is $4 per acre when the yield in the town-
ship or eligible area is not more than three bushels per acre;
when the yleld is more than three bushels per acfe but not
more than five, the award is $3 per acre and when the yield

i exceeds five Yushels per acre but is not more than eight,



the award is $2 per acre, The individual farmer is pajd on
the basis of the yield in the townehip or eligible area.

It is possible for a farmer occupying a partial
section to obtaln an award even though he has harvested in
excess of 12 bushels per acre, so long as the other occupant
of his particular section has 1 yiald low enough to bring
the averaga for that section bi:low 12 bushels per acre
and the average yield of the towaship is eight bushels per
acre or less, The maxinum any farmer can receive, regardless
of tha size of his farm, is $800, on the basis of $4 per acre
1 fov a maximum of 200 acres, as provided in the Act,

This briefly, outlines the procedure and the
manner in which the Pralrie Farm Ausistance Administration

discharges its duties under the guidance of the Director,
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PART I

THE DISMISSAL OF MR, GEORGE WALKER

The Minister of Agriculture is responsible for the
administration of The Prairie Farm Assistance Act. These
duties and responsibilities are carried out by the Director
under the direction of the Minister of Agriculture, and his
Deputy.

The officers, clorks and employees of The Prairie
Farm Assistance Administration are not members of the Civil
Service, They are appointed by Order in Council and hold
offico during pleasure, The prosent Director of The Prairie
Farm Assistance Administration, Mr, Howord S, Riddel}l, was
appointed to that position on June 1, 1961, by Order in
Council, His Superintendent, Mr, W,F, Davies, joined the staff
of the P,F,A,A, in September, 1957 and was appoihted Superintendent
by Oxder in Council on June 20, 1960, The supervisor of the
Swift Current Dietrict, Mr, George M, Walker, was appointnd to
that position by Order in Council in December, 1962, All nembers
of tﬁo Board of Raview were appointed by Urdor in Council in
the years 1961 and 1962,

| Mr, Walkor improssed me as a capable person, He had

had a great deal of experience in P, ,A,A, matters, having sorved
% as Inspector in 1957 and becoming, in 1958, the "key man" for
the Swift Current Supervisor, Mr, Jack Davidson., It was upon
Mr, Davidson's retirement as Supervisor that Mr, Walker was

appointed in December, 1962, Mr, Walker's responsibilities as




Supervisor did not commence until December 4, 1962, but he was,

of course, familiar with the work in the area for some time
prior to that date,

The difficulties that arose in the year 1962 were
brought about, to a large extent, by a different approach
peing taken to the manner in which the Act could and should
be administercd, The Director, Mr, Riddell, although feeling
everyone entitled to an award under the Act should receive it,
nevertheless considered it the responsibility of his Administration
to ensure that no one veceived an award under the Act unless

\

he was clearly entitled to an award under its provisions, He
further congidered it the duty of those engaged in the Admin-
istration to see that no other influence caused awards to be
made. He believed that his Supervisors and Inspectors should
be concerned only with securing information and protecting the
Administration in carrying outs its responsibilities. He was
of the opinion that nothing should interfere with investigations
which he thought necessary, and that his Supervisors and members
of Iile staff should accept directions only through him,

The Director was not satisfied that he had received
the type of co-operation that should have been forthcoming
from the Swift Current Supervisory District, He cited many
instances which had made him concerned about the manner in which
Mr, George Walker, the Supervisor in this District, carried

out his duties,




Here possibly I should review some of the
matters that were placed before the Commission, which
although perhaps small in themselves, caused some appre-
hension in the mind of the Director in his dealings with
Mr. Walker, They were produced in evidence to show some
of the things that the Director thought were not in accord-
ance with good practice on the part of the Supervisor,

I refer first to the Bymoen case which concerned
a first-year farmer., The file came to the attention of
Mr, Morton, P.F,A,A, Administrative Officer in Regina.
When he reviewed the Bymoen CAR he first marked it
"eligible", After reading through the file a second
time, he decided this éase did not appear to him to be
one for which an award should be given., Certainly an
award should not ke paid without the matter being referred
to the Board of Review for its consideration.

The farmer had written a letter complaining
that he had not received his P,F,A, payment, so the
full facts concerning the matter were referred by Mr,

Morton in a memorandum to the Board of Review. They
«

reviewed the file on April 18, 1963 and decided that
the farmer was ineligible. The same day that the Board
arrived at this decision, Mr, Walker, the Supervisor
from the Swift Current District, called at the Regina
office and was advised of the action taken by the

Board of Review, and told to inform the farmer what

had happened, A memorandum to this effect was placed

on the file,
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Subsequently a letter was received from Mr, Walker
in which he reviewed the circumstanceq concerning the Bymoen
application, and urged that the matter be raferred to the
Board of Review for reconsideration., Both Mr. Riddell and
Mr. Morton thought the report which had been received from
Mr. Walker regarding Bymoen rather unusual, because the
matter had already been dealt wita by thc Board of Review,
and the appeal of the farmer closed, They considered this,
in effect, an appeal by Walker acting on behalf of the farmer.
| They felt, however, that in view of the letter it shkould again
% be referred to the Board for their review, Or the 24th day
~ of May the matter again came before the Board. They confirmed
the action which they had-a.lready taken, and held that the
farmer was ineligible.

Another case where Mr, Riddell believed Mr, Walker
had gone farther than he should have as Supervisor fn dealiﬁq
with an application, concerned the Cummings application,

This had reference to the withdrawing of acreage as irrigation
land 30 that the crop grown on this property would not be
included in determining the yield in a particular secticn,

The Cummings CAR, which was taken on Octcber 1, 1962,
indicated that he had no irrigation on his farm in 1962,
Subsequently, on the 23rd of March, 1963, a special report

on irrigation land was submitted by Mr.,Walker, indicai:ing

that the Cummings' land was irrigat:d, and stating that the

i type of irrigation was spring flood, 1I7 this were so, it

would be ex&luded from the provisions of £he Act. The
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evidence of Cummings and the Inspector given to the Commission
established without question that there was no irrigation
project on the land in question, The irrigation report was
submitted with the idea of eliminating the Cummings' land,
and enabling another farmer to obtain an award, Certainly
the Supervisor, in acting as he had, endeavoured to obtain
an award for a farmer who was ineligible under the Act and
Regulations,

There were other difficulties with Mr. Walker
in regard to several of his expense accounts, The first of
these related to removal expenses, Mr, Walker vigorously
pressed for payment of moving expenses from Glentworth to
Swift Current on his appointment as Supervisor., I do not
thinﬁ that any blame should be attached to Mr. Walker for
ehdeavourinq to obtain moving expenses if they could be
properly obtained, but when this matter was reviewed, there
were other expenses, too, that came under surveillance,
There was an expense account in connection with a trip to
Elrose which seemed to bhe incorrect in both particulars and
purpose, Mr, Jack Mcintosh, Member of Parliament for the
Swift Current-Maple Creek Constituency accompanied Mr, Walker
on tﬂis trip, as he intended to address a political meeting.

|
%He stated that he went with Mr. Walker only because Mr, Walker

hud arranged to make the trip., Mr. Riddell, however, did not
look with favour on his Supervisor's assisting a Member of

!Parliament in his campaign and was very annoyed with Mr.
]

Walker for making his car available for this purpose,
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Then there were the two expense accounts having

to do with improper charges being made by Mr, Walker while
attending in Regina, and charging expenses to cover his
wife as well as himself, One of the vouchers submitted
had been changed, This receipt apparently was first made
out to "Mr, and Mrs. G, M. Walker", It had then obviously
been changed to "Mr. G.M, Walker" and submitted by him

as a voucher for accommodation charges at the Potel Sask.
atchewan. Mr, Walker in his evidence, said he did not
change the receipt himself, or have it charged, Both
receipts were rot in the regular form. He got special
receipts on both of these occasions., Unfortunately,

I cannot come to any oither conclusdon but that these

two receipts were submitted to the Department to improperly
obtain expenses from the Department. - In both cases they
were checked and disallowod as submitted,

These things, small as they are, were of great
concern to a Director charged with the responsibility of
administering the Act hoﬁestly and efficien%ly. They
caused the Director to lack the confidence that he

should have had in his Supervisor for the Swift Current

District; and when he received a letter from the Minister
the Hon, Alvinrﬁéﬁiiton, co;cerniﬁg thers;héck cﬁéé;iﬁei
became greatly concerned.

The Schock case came to the attention of the

Director in a letter from the Minister which read as

follows:-
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Ottawa, Ontario,
January 21, 1963,

Mr, H.S, Riddell, Director,
po P.A.Al r

418 Federal Bldg.,

Regina, Sask.

Pear Mr, Riddell:

I am attaching hereto a copy of a letter
received from Mr, §,8, Schock of Hodgeville,
Sask., together with a copy of my reply.

I suggest that, in.company with Mr. Walker,
you visit Mr, Schock as soon as possible
and insist that he substantiate the state-
ments which he makes,

If, as he suggests, certain of your inspectors
have not been properly carrying out their
duties, you should make sure they are not
employed again,

Please provide me with a report when you
have completed your investigations,

Yours sincerely,

Alvin Hamilton, .

The enclosure read as follows:

Sam S. Schock,
Box 82, Hodgeville, Sask.
January 10, 1963,

Rt, Hon, alvin Hamilton,
Ottawa, Canada.

Dear Sir:

I would like to bring to your attention and

for your consideration things pertaining to

the P,F,A,A. I have been a field inspector

with P.F.A, for several seasons and the more
work I do the more I feel that this Act has

outlived its intended purpose and usefulness
in its present form.
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I have never tried to hold the farmer to the
last kernel of wheat, but no farmer has put

it over me by more than two bushels per acre,
either. There are inspectors in the field
who do not measure grain even though this
question has been answered in the affirmative,
I am positive that 20 to 30 bushel crops have
been reported at less than 12 bushels,

Now trat results of the survey are coming out

I am utterly disgusted, I will do no more work
under this Act in its present form, Not when
you are working alongside inspectors who are not
doing the job, Farmers who have given truthful
statements are disgusted and infuriated with the
way pay areas are coming out,

Honesty has cost me at least $2,000 to this date,
This year's results are not out for my area,

I'm sure it cost me another $400, This is get-
ting hard to stomach.

Give me several months and the authority and I
am positive that I can prove that we are getting
far from the facts called for under this Act,

As I told Mr, Walker, the supervisor at Swift
Current the other day, its going to be difficult
to explain to eastern members that the prairies
had a record crop and then make P,F,A, payments
to the oxtent that they are going to be made,

Mr, Walker suggested that I should come up with
something better to replace this Act, The Act,
in its present form has been under discussion by
several of us inspectors for several years now,
and I feel that we can come up with something
much more realistic and which would make it pos-
sible to make payment to the individual farmer
instead of on an area basis as at present. We
have no doubt that what we have in mind would be
acceptable to the farmer, and it would be possible
for all farmers for once in their life to affix
their signatures to a statement which they would
know to be truthful,

I am aware of the fact that P.F.A. payments have
over the years been helpful as far as the agricul-
tural economy on the prairies is concerned and for
that matter the whole Canadian economy stands to
profit by these paymenta, I just do not approve
of the Act in its present form because it is penal-
izing the farmer who is truthful and a great many
farmers have resorted to affixing their signatures

to false declarations, What we propose would ba in a
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sense force a farmer to make a truthful declar-
ation, failing to do so would penalize only the
farmer having made a false declaration.

Also under the method which w2 would propose it
would be possible over a period of time to deal
with the individual farm case, or in some cases on
an area basis, whichever would be advisable,

Over the long haul we might get somewhere to
solving orx correcting some of our agricultural
problems in the wheat-growing areas,

I will also give Mr, McIntosh, my representative
a copy of this letter, ard I intend to sea him
personally before he returns te Ottawa., I am
fully aware of the fact that you men are very
busy and I hate to take up your time, but I
can't help but register my thoughts and feelings
pertaining to agriculture,

Tours truly,

$,8. Schock.

This communication caused Mr, Riddell to check many files

in the areas concerned, by comparing the CARs for 1962

i with the CARs for 1961, These comparisons indicated that

the CARs for 1962 in many instances cortained inaccurate
information. The suspected irreqularities were so extensive
that Mr, Riddell got in touch with the Hinist;r, suggesting
an investigatign in the Swift Cirrent District and in other
areas; He was instructed by the Minister to withhold
payrent of cheques and to proceed with an investigation,

The Minister's letter dealing with this matter read

as follows:
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OTTAWA,
February 12, 1963,

Personal & Confidential

H,8, Riddell, Esq,, Director,

Prairie Farm Assistance Administration,
418 Federal Bldg.,

Regina, Sask,

Dear Howard:

In reply to your letter of February lst concerning
suspected falsification of Cultivated Acreage
Reports, I've talked to the six Members of Parl-
iament concerned about the areas where there's
suspected activity of this sort and we all agree
that the first responsibility of the Administration
of P,F,A,A, is to carry out the responsibilities
of the Act fairly and honestly. Therefore, I am
accepting your recommendation that action be taken
to clear up these difficulties in any local areas
where they might occur.

We all agreed that the supervisors, who, I expect,
will be the key men in the local investigations,
should keep the local Members of Parliament in-
formed of developments, 1 would emphasize that

this is absolutely essential if we are to maintain
the co-operation we are now getting from the Members.

I think the Members of Parliament have adopted

the right attitude. They agree to supperting the
efficient operation of P,F.A.A, if, in return,

they are kept informed. They understand that the
Party will gain more from the efficient operation
of P,F.,A.A, than from any idea of favouritism,
gaining them support., They are genuinely concerned,
however, about a blundering bureaucratic approach
causing needless difficulties,

Howard, I sincerely belleve that if you inform

the M,P,'s of yoir plans, and of your intention to
do everything honestly, but firmly -- with due
consideration to the manner in which it is done --
that the Members will back you up.

I have had the same problems with P.F,R,A, in local
areas, with Parm Credit and with the Wheat Board.
So far I, have been able to maintain the integrity
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» of each of these organizations, and at the same time
E bring the human element, which the Members of Parl-
| iament represent, intoe full consideration. If a

5 procedure is right, and if it is explained to the

I M.P,s ahead of time, they usually go along with it.
It certainly adds to my work to approach it in

this manner, but I think it has achieved better
results than the approach of my predecessor, who
got the Members very upset,

Many thanks for bringing this matter to my personal
attention, as it helps me clear the way for you,

I have had discussions with Cliff Barry on the
subject, so you need not raise it with him offic-
ially., He approvesd of what you are doing.

Yours sincerely,
Alvin Hamilton,

Mr., Riddell proceeded immediately to carry out

the investigation in accordance with the instructions which
he had received from his Minister, He éxperienned no diffi-
culty iﬁ the other Supgrvisory Districts but was met with a
:great deal of opposition in the Swift Current District,

 Mr, W,F, Davies, P,F,A,A, Superintendent, was
highly regarded by all parties to the Inquiry, .Both counsel
for the Department and counsel for Mr, Walker and Mr. McIntosh
{ were anxious that his evidence be secured. Unfortunétely,
Mr, Davies had suffered a heart attack and was unabie to

' give his evidence at the formal sittings. It was arranged

that his evidence would te secured at his home and that counsel

Hihark wb

would submit to the Commissioner the questions they wished

answered by him, All of his evidence was taken in the

e SR R s

presence of counsel, the Secretary to the Commission ard

e

the court reporter,

-




Mr, Davies had, in February, 1963 accompanied the
; Director to Swift Current to arrange for the investigation in

1 that area. He had this to say about the trip to Swift Current:
3 o

WITNESS: Mr. Davies
1 BY: The Commissioner

Q. What happened then?

A, When we arrived in Swift Current, we arrived
there at night and the next morning we went
down to the office, that is the Swift Current
P,F.A, office and Mr, McIntosh, as I under-

. stand it, was to come over to that office

3 and meet Mr, Riddell whenever he could. I

4 don't know if there was any definite time

stated or not but Mr, Walker and Mr, Riddell

and I discussed this situation while we were
waiting for Mr. McIntosh.

Q. Can you tell us what the discu5910n was?

brpgdbaa

_ A, Yes, the discussion was, Mr. Rid4dell had some

: examples with him and, of course, Mr, Walker at
: that time was aware of the old wheat situation,
3 The discussion, more or less, was should it be
investigated or shouldn't it, and Mr, Walker
seemed to be of the opinion that it shouldn't
be investigated at that time,

\.

Q. ~ Why did he take that stand?

A, He stated that if the investigation was carried
out at that time it would cost us the seat --
thome were the words he used.

Q. And was there any further discussion? f

{ A, Mr, Riddell said that politics had nothing to
] do with it and then he went on to explain that
) if it did, we would be in a funny position

if the administration in Ottawa changed ard

P then we decided tc do this, somebody would

1 want to know why we walted, Mr, Walker's

4 reply to that wvas, well what do you care

: about thaty if the administration changes

in Ottawa you and 1 won't be working for

this outfit ten minutes,
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WITNESS: Mr. Davies (cont'd)
BY: The Commissioner
Q. How about you?
A, I was sitting there listening, I don't know
if that included me or not,
Yuc. McIntosh and Mr, Walker did not feel that the

payment of the cheques should be held up pending the invest-

igation and they were not satisfied with the type of invest-
igation that was proposed. It was impossible for Mr, Riddell
to obtain any co-opération at all from either Mr, McIntosh
or Mr. Walker. It is hard to understand why any co-operation
was ﬁecessary from Mr, ﬁcIntosh. except, of course, that
Mr, Riddell had been instructed by the Minister to keep the
Menbers of Parliament informed,

Because of the controversy which had developed,
the Minister had instructed his Exescutive Assistant, Mr,
Roy Faibish, to take the matter in hand, VIt was arranged by
Mr. Faibish that Mr, Riddell and Mr, McIntosh would meet in
Swift Current and would qet in touch w1th h1m by long dis-

tance telephone so that the difficulty could be discussed

and Mr. ngdell had talked with_Mr. Faibish over the long
distance telephone and after a great deal of controveray
and discussion, Mr, Riddell reluctantiy agreed to issue the
cheques on the understanding that Mr, Paibish Yould call a
meeting later on at which Mr, McIntosh, Mr Walker, Mr.

Riddell and himself would determxne if an 1nvest1gat10n was

warranted and if so, the type of 1nvestxgat10n which would

take place,
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Mr., Davies had this to say about the meeting

between Mr., McIntosh and Mr. Riddell and the result of

this meeting}—

WITNESS:
BY:

Mr, Davies
The Commissioner

What happened after Mr, McIntosh arrived?

After Mr, McIntosh arrived, Mr. Riddell and he
went into -- there are two offices in the P,F,.A.
office there, one sort of private one and one
outer one; then there is another big room which
is ~- this incidentally is in the basement of
the Post Office building -- there is another
big room which is kind of a storage space, or
intended for, which we had the use of as a
checking office, and Mr. McIntosh and Mr,
Riddell went into the private office and

Mr., Walker and myself went into the big room
down the hall, and we made a cup of coffee,

So you didn't hear anything of what took place

. between Mr. Riddell and Mr. McIntosh?

No, sir,

Did you hear the result of what took-piaceé
No, sir. Only what Mr. Riddell told me,
You didn’'t hear anything from Mr, McIntosh?
No.

Did Mr, Riddell say anything to you in the
presence of Mr. Walker about what took place?

Well, he said to me, as I recall, he canme
into the room where Mr, Walker and I were
and he said, "Well, you and I can go back
to Regina, I guess we are going to pay
these townships.*

I see, And did you go back to Regina?

Yes, sir, w2 dia,

.bié-fbﬁmhave any further &iscussion with Mr,

Riddell about the investigation?
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Mr, Davies (cont'd)
The Commissioner

On the way in, Mr, Kiddell related to me what
had gone on in this meeting,

Yes. Did he give you any instructions?

Yes, he said that we were to begin to process
these townships. These townships were held up,
payment was stopped on them, We wersé to begin
to process them and present them to the Treasury
office for payment,

I see, Did anything take place on the week-end
that changed that at all? Were you not in on that
at all? what took place?

All I know, sir, we came back from Swift Current
on Thursday evening and Friday when we went down
to the office, Mr. Riddell gave instructions to
the staff to get the machinery started to pro-
cess ©'ese things and send them in to Treasury,
When I came home that night I didn't feel very
good about it; as a matter of fact I discussed
it with my wife and I decided it was time I
looked for employment elsewhere,

You didn't like not having the investigation?
No, sir, I did not,.

You thought tlere should be an investigation?
Yes, sir, I did,

You were satisfied that from the'information
you had, there should be an investigation?

Yes, sir.

And did you so express yourself to Mr. Riddell?

Many times,

Upon his return to Regina, however, Mr, Riddell was

still.concerned about proceeding in the ménner prdposed by

Me. Faibish and Mr. McIntosh because he thought difficuiéy




1{wou1d be experienced in carrying out an investigation after

§ the cheques had been paid. He had found it was impossible
Fto obtain information concerning crop sales from the Canadian

i Wheat Board, unless the farmers consented to the information

: bzing given. He anticipated that difficulty might be exper-
{ienced in securing information if the chéques were paid.
é’He ascertained, however, that the Minister of Agriculture
§was in Regina at this time, Accordingly, he got in touch
with the Minister in regard to the problem and indicated
ihis feeling that there might be some reflection upon the
Minister himself, and the Director as well, if, in fact,

gpayments were made without an investigation being undertaken.

iThe Minister instructed Mr, Riddell not to make the payments
fif he felt they should not be paid and to do nothing in
:regard to the matter until he heard again from him or Mr.

tFaibish, The Minister indicated he would instruct Mr, Paibish

{concerning the matter,
é Mr. Hamilton appeared before the Commission and
2corroborated Mr, Riddell's evidence in this regard, He

Jindicated the Yifficulty that he had experienced with Mr.

McIntosh, who insisted that no investigation was necessary
Bnd that payments should be made, but stated definitely that
de told the Director that he should not make the payments if
?'t were against his conscience to do so, and that he would
pee Mz. Faibish. Unfortunatoly, the Minister because of

his busy schedule, did not contact Mr, Faibish.
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Part of the evidence dealing with this phase of

Mr, Hamilton
Mr, Kohaly

Tell me, Mr, Hamilton, in the course of time the
question of whether or not the cheques should or
should not go out in the Swift Current area arose
and you had gepresentation from both McIntosh

and Riddell,K Wiid you not?

Yes,

What was your position with respect to this item
between the two men?

You m2an at that time?
Yes,

I think there was no question about that, that I
was supporting the Director. I had given him
those instructions on February 12th, when that
letter went out. I had kept to those instructions
when later discussions occurred as to who was
going to investigate and so on, and I would say
generally speaking, all during this pericd I was
supporting the position that I had put the Director
in, and I was aware, of course, near the end of
these big issues, but at the time I think I can
say that I stuck with the Director,

Did you at any time turn the matter of the cheques
being paid or not paid over to anyone else?

Later on yes, in the debate it got to a point

where there was a great discussion going on

about who should investigate in this area, and

on such a small matter as who was going to in-
vestigate -- I got in the centre of this business

with these conflicting points of view, and I

recall on one occasior that I asked Mr, Riddell

to go to Swift CQurrent and I 'phoned Mr, McIntosh

and made them both promise not to lose their tempers —-
to discuss the thing rationally and surely a3 grown

~ men they could come to a satisfactory solution as

to wvho was going to investigate an area. Mr;,
McIntosh was not objecting to Mr, Riddell going

in, but he was at this time very adamant about

one person going in. I thoughthithis was the type
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Mr, Hamilton (cont'd}
Mr, Kohaly

of thing that I should not be mixed up with,
I called Mr. Faibish on the *‘phone -- I have
forgotten where he was -- he was moving about
the country very quickly (and so was 1), I
said: “This is your work:; get these men to-
gether, and whatever the three of you agree
on, I will accept. I trust your judgment;

I trust your integrity; I will accept whatever
the three of you agree on, but there must be
agreement between the three of you. Don't
bother me any more with this thing. Get it
cleared away.” Those were my {nstructions
to him,

Did these instructions include the decision
to pay or not pay the cheques?

Well, of course this had all been in the
whole discussion. I could recount many little
items of pressure that were put on from either
side., Mr, McIntosh was waving the Act: pointing
out what the Act said and pointing out my duties
as a Member of Parliament to support what he
said were many arguments -- and I couldn't deny
these were powerful arguments -- but on the other
hand I was trying to back up the Director in
carrying out in a convenient, administrative,
way these investigations. I was just -- not
upset, but a shade annoyed that they should
bother me as to who was going to inspect an
area, like this, So I deliberately tried to
remove myself from this type of situation,

From the time you turned over this matter to

the direction of Mr. Faibish, did you in your
mind consider that he had the right to say when
the cheques would go out, or did it have to come
back to you?

I said: "I don't want to hear any more of this,
I want you to clear this matter up, It is an
administrative detail, which is in your field

of operation -- not mine.,” As a matter of fact,
I naver did hear until long afterwards what the
decision between the three really was.,

Q. 0n the questidn Gf when €he cheques would go out?

No -- on the details., I didn't hear until long
afterwards what the whole quarrel was about.
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‘JWITNESS: Mr. Hamilton (cont‘'d)
i BY: Mr, Kohaly

Q. There has been some evidence that, notwith-
standing the fact that this had been turned
3 over, that Mr. Riddell contacted you about --
E "shall I pay out the cheques or shall I not
pay them." Do you have a memory on the subject?

A, Yes., I can't tell you the date. 1 recall the
place, It was in the Drake Hotel here in Regina,
Mr, Riddell came to me about the problem again
and said he was \ery concerned about these
cheques going ocut and felt quite unhappy about it,

Did you exercise any authority on the subject of --
"Go ahead, pay them out" or “"Don't pay them out" --
or "whatever Mr, Faibish says, you make your choice."

T AR Ao i o i i
o]
-

Son g

A, I don't think I put it that way. I think I do

; recall saying to Mr, Riddell that he shouldn't

3 do anything that would go against his conscience,
but I did say to him that I would take this matter
up with Mr, Paibish again if it would make him

feel any happier. I never did get the time to take
it up with Mr. Faibish,

G. You never did which?
A, I never did get a chance to take it up with Mr,
Faibish,

Nothing then developed until March 21st. On that

“date Mr. Walker came to the Regina office and Mr, Davies,

3the Superintendent, saw him at that time. Mr, Walker was

J'pset because the cheques had not gone forward, and wished
;t0 see the Director about it, Mr, Riddell was in Saskatoon
%ht the time and Mr. Walker got in touch with him by long-
_distance telephone and discussed this matter with him, in

]

ithe presence of Mr. Davies,

in part, as follows:-
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WITNESS: Mr. Davies
BY: The Commissioner
Q. And when was the next time that anything was

done about the cheques?

A, The next thing, it just ground to a halt until
towards on in March, I would say around the 20th
or 21st of March, around there. I believe it
was the 21st of March, Mr. Walker came into the
office in Regina and he came in to see me and he
asked me why these chegques had not gone out, as
was agreed in Swift Current. I told him I didn't
know what the situation was other than my instruct-
jons were that they were to be held and we were
to wait for further instructions,

Q. About this time, what did Mr. Walker do about it?

A. Mr. Walker became slightly annoyed and there was

- a political meeting here in Regina that night.
The Prime Minister and the Minister of Agriculture
and Mr. Faibish were here in town. He indicated
to me that he was going to see one or all of them,
or some of them and find out what was going on.

0. what did you tell him?

A, I instructed him that he was to see nobedy until -
he cleared it with the Director. Incidentally,
the Director was in Saskatoon at a Municipal Con-
vention at that time, I said to Mr, Walker that
I would try to get him on the telephone, 1 said,
'T will get him on the telephone and you can talk
to him.' And he agreed to do that,

Q. Did you hear the conversation?
A, I heard one side of it.

Q. what side, what did you hear?

A, Mr, Walker's side.

. Q. -— What-did he say? . . _.

h. He, in my opinion, was quite insubordinate He
said, 'You're God damn right I'm interested in
this and I am going to find out what is going
on here.'

Q. And was there anything else you heard him say?
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WITNESS: Mr., Davies (cont'd}
BY: The Commissioner

A, I heard him -- I couldn't quote him exactly,
but he said in effect that he had no business
going to see the Minister,

Q. He told Mr., Riddell this?

A, Yes.,

Q. And you know ttat Mr, Riddell was on the other
end of the line?

A. Yes sir, because I had got him on the ‘phone,
He was on the oiher end of the line when I had
stopped talking to hin,

Q. Did you receive any instructions from Mr, Riddell
after that conversation?

A, Yes, sir, the followirg day I go%t a ‘'phone call
from Mr, Riddell in Saskatoon, instructing me
to put the staff to work processing these claims
and presenting them to Treasury Office for payment.

Q. You don't know of your own personal knowledge
why those instructions were given?

A, No, sir, All I know is what he told me.

Mr. Walker gave evidence ccncerning this interview,
and his evidence dealing with this conversation reads in
part as follows:-

WITNESS: Mr, Walker
BY: Mr, Goodall

Q. Tt is correct, is it not, that Mr, Riddell had

previously told you to stay out of this matter?
A. You are on the same ’phone call, sir?

Q. On the sane matter, Sometime or other during
your talk with Mr. Riddell, did he not tell you,
prior to your seeing Mr. Hamilton, to stay out

of it?
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Mr, Walker ({(cont'd)
Mr. Goodall

He could have on that 'phone call, yes.

Now, is it not correct that despite that
order from Mr, Riddell, you still went to

see Mr, Hamilton at the airport? That is
correct, isn't it?

Yes, sir,

Now, if you were the Director and this happened,
would you call that action insubordination?

Not without just cause, in my opinion, sir.
Then you wouldn't call it insubordination?
No, sir, not in that case.

Will you tell me just how you reason or figure
that you had the right at that time to go over
the head of the Director?

The Director and I along with two others had made
a solid deal that didn't go through, sir, 1In
order to get these farmers paid who I was int-
erested in, something had to be done by someone,
because apparently it wasn't going to be done by
the Regina office,

And that is the basis on which you felt you could
go over the head of the Director and go right to
Mr, Hamilton, is that correct?

I don't feel I went over his head., I advised him
of what I was going to do, sir., Had I not advi =d
him, that would have been different.

" But he advised you'ih reply that if you did there

would.be serious consequences, or you would be

fired?

Apparently that is what has happened, sir.

"And you took that calculated risk in going to see

Mr. Hamilton? Y

It is calculated into having been a risk apparently,
sir, -

Well Mr, Riddell, in your own evidence saids "If
you do this you will be fired.” That is correct?

That is correct, sir.
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Mr. Walker did contact Mr, Hamilton briefly at
the airport. Mr. Hamilton told him he had turned over all
P.F.A.A. matters to Mr. Faibish, and that lLie should see him
about any matter pertaining to the P,F,A,A, Administration.
Mr. Walker then got in touch with Mr, Faibish who assured
him that hé would instruct Mr, Riddell to pay the awards
immediately, Mr, Faibish got in touch with Mr., Riddell
by long-distance telephone and instructed him to see that !
the cheques were issued, and stated that he would confirm
* thesé instructions in writing.,” ~— - o e e
Mr, Riddell returned to Regina on Friday, and
although he had received no confirmation in writing from
Mr, Faibish, he immediately instructed his staff to proceed
to issue the cheques, On the following Monday, however,
the Board of Review held one of its regular meetings at
Regina,- and Mr, Riddell reported to the Board exactly what
had transpired in connection with the Swift Current District,
As a result he was instructed by thevBoard_Chair—
man not to send out the cheques, and it was indicated to
him that the Board would go to Swift Current in an attempt

to straighten matters out, Subsequently the Board Chairman,

after the Board meeting with Mr, McIntosh and Mr. Walker in
Swift Current, countermanded the instructions to withhold
the cheques, and instructed Mr. Riddell to let the cheques

go forward in accordance with the instructions he had re-

ceived from Mr., Faibich; oo
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It is unnecessary for me to go into the contro-

versy that developed between the Board and Mr. McIntosh

and Mr. Walker, Suffice to say that as a result of this

meeting, the Bo;rd Chairman instructed Mr, Riddell to
arrange for the cheques to be issued.

There is no doubt but that Mr, Jack McIntosh,
M,P, for the Swift Current-Maple Creek Constituency,
interested himself in the whole P,F,A,A, program, He
attended many of the schools held for Inspectors, and
got in touch with Mr. Walker on many occasions concerning
problems ¢of his constituents, Accﬁrding to Mr, Walker,

he did not receive or take any iqstructions from Mr,

McIntosh, and Mr, McIntosh in his evidence indicated
that he did not at any time give any orders in connection
with the work of the P,F.A, Administration. From the
evidence, however, it seems to me that Mr. McIntosh had
a very profound influence over Mr, Walker, and also tried
to exert pressure not only on the Director, Mr. Riddell,
but on the Board of Review as well.

In his evidence, Mr. McIntosh had this to say

about Mr, Riddell:-

;____‘—~*WTTﬁES§T‘JHr. McIntash
' BY: Mr, Kohaly

Q. Now, shortly after Mr, Riddell took over his
job and there was a meeting, as I understand
it, in Swift Current and you were contacted
by some P,F.A,A, official (probably Mr, Walker)
to attend at the Swift Current offic: and to
have some discussions with Mr, Riddell on the
question of a large school in the Swift Current
supervisory area. Have I identified the time

and place to you?
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Mr. McIntosh (cont’'d)
Mr, Kohaly

Except that Mr. Walker didn't contact mep

it was Mr, Davidson who was thne Supervisor

at that time, He ‘'phoned me up and saids

“Mr, Riddell is in my office and he would

like to see you." 1 said: "If Mr, Riddell
wants to see me he'll come down to my office,"
which he did do.

Did he come alone or with someone?

No, he came with Mr., Davidson, When he came
into the office I could see that he was very
annoyed and he talked from the time he came
in until I said, "wWell, just a minute Mr.
Riddell; you sit down and listen to a few
remarks that I have to make," Do you wish
me to carry on with the conversation?

Appropos to the schools?

Yes, Well, this is in the field, I talked with
him for about an hour and I must eliminate some

of it as it goes into Lhe field that the Judge

does not want me to touch upon, So I will relate
it as close as I can remember, First of all I
said: "Mr. Riddell, I am going to be very frank
with you and possibly you think I'm very blunt

but if it appears that way, I intend it; I intend
to be blunt." I said, "First of all, the remarks
that you made when you first came in here, I asked
myself why they were made, and it is for one of

two reasons, in my opinion, - One is that the step
from the Secretary of the Municipality to the
Directort's position was too much for you, or

you have not been properly briefed in your position
as Director of P.F.A,A., or you nave been improperly
briefed in it, Now, getting back to the one remark
that you made when you first came in the door,

and your first statement, I believe, was that

the Director' -- 'I am running it' -- getting
back to the first remark that 'I am not running
P.F.A.A.' ~- that is correct. The second xemark
‘that you are the director' -- that is correct,
but the remark that 'you are running P.F.A.A.'
is not correct.” ;
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Mr, McIntosh had this to say about the Board

of Review:-

WITNESS:
BY:
Q.
A,

Mr, MciIntosh
Mr, Kohaly

Do you know Tom Garland?

Very well, Wwhen I went into the Skyline Hotel

I asked if Mr, Garland was there, and I was
directed to a room upstairs to which I went,

I knocked and went in, and there were several
gentlemen in the room. I immediately recognized
them as Members of the Board of Review., I saiqd,
What is this, an official or unotfficial visit?”
They said it was an official visit, I said,

~"In what respect?” They said, "In éonniecticn T

with the holding back of payments on the P.F.A.A.
cheques.” I said, "On what grounds?” I was
informed that because of the suspicions of M1,
Ricdell, 1 asked, "What suspicions did Mr.
Riddell have?" They said something to do with
the carry-over of wheat in particular areas,

I said, "Gentlemen, those are suspicions, Has
he given you any concrete examples of whether
there are irregularities in any of these areas?”
They said, "No, he hadn't at that time." I
talked with them again for close to an hour and
in this field, and I also talked about politics,
which you wish me to stay away from,

However, I must make this statement, that I was
afraid that there was political influence being
used in this case and I reminded them of a

former instance where it seemed to me thai pol-
itics were creeping in and what had happened

and the individual concerned was the former
Director, who I said was the former Chief Liberal
organizer for the province of Saskatchewan, was
involved., I told them further that if they had
no concrete examples and they had passed these

'Elﬁims:“then*they_hadmnofauthority_to"withhgld
the cheques, I think I cited the Act. I told
them that the cheques should have gone out in
December and if they insisted that they had the .
power to withhold, then possibly the penalty
provisions within the Act should be applied;
that they were violating the Act if they were

“using that type of power, which they had no

authority to do.
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Mr, McIntosh (cont'd)
Mr. Kohaly

I also informed them that this was an Act
passed by the Prrliament of Canada and once

it was passed it applied to everyone; not

even the Minister c¢suld violate the provisions -
of it without the penalty being applied if

someone so wished, ard in this case, I so

wished, on behalf of the people that I rep-

resented., And if I was going to have any

more tcouble with this, I would lay a

complaint against the whole works, including

the Director, the Board of Review or anybody -
else that tried to interfere in withholding '
these cherjues,

Sounds like the Teddy Roosevelt situation --
walking softly but carrying a big club, Mr,
McIntosh., Was that your situation?

There was nc club, 1 intended to lay the
charge Lif it was necessary,

Mr. McIntosh had this to say about the proposed

investigation:-

WITNESS:
BY:

Qc__

[ b

Mr, McIntosh
Mr, Kohaly

Were you satisfied you were talking with Paibish?

Oh, yes,

.. You knew Faibish?

Very well, But he said: "In regard to an
investigation, have you any objection to it."
T saids:s "I have no objection to any investig-
ation.,"

Was this your position?
Absolutely,

Did“;;;_QGér.cohvé}”thaiﬁéwai}mﬁiddeilf'

A,

Yes.
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WITNESS: Mr, McIntosh ({cont'd)
BY: Mr, Kohaly

T e Vg et

Q. Go ahead?

A, Providing there were grounds for it. It was
arranged that we would meet sometime later and
go over the suspicion that Mr., Riddell had,
any grounds that he had, and if an investigation
was warranted, the subject of who would conduct
the investigation would be discussed and a settle-
ment arrived at.

Q. Was this a private converxsation between you :
and Mr. Paibish in which Mr, Riddell is not !
about, or is he about?

A, Well, when Mr, Riddell was speaking to Mr,
Faibish, I walked out of the room, I didn't
know whether Mr, Riddell wanted to tell him
something in confidence or not. He didn't ask
me to go out, I just walked out and I think
I went into one of the other rooms where Mr,
Walker, the Supervisor at that time, and Mr,
Davies, the Superintendent, were sitting talking,
and we passed the time of day. Mr. Riddell came
out of the supervisor's office and he said ™
"Mr., McIntosh, Mr, Failbish would like to speak
to you,” I said, "Fine", so Mr, Faibish said,
"1his is what I have arranged with Mr. Riddell.
Do you concur?" I said, "That suits me fine as
long as the cheques are sent out immediately.”

Then we hung up and passed the time of day
for a few minutes, and My, Walker came in., I
forget whether Mr, Davies did, but I said,
"So that there would be no misunderstanding,
then, Mr, Riddell, these cheques will go out
immediately on your return to Regina, and if
- - ... an investigation is warranted, we will arrange
l that at a later date,” He said, "Absolutely."

It is very unfortunate that this situation pre-
v-iled in the Swift Current District, The Pact that it did

made it almost impossible for the Director, Mr, Riddell, to

carry cut his duties in a proper manner, In order to have

s T, WL iy g

an efficient administration, there must be an establishai

line of authority in any Government Department, The Director
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of P.F.A.A, is responsible to the Minister \ f Agriculture
and his Deputy. The Supervisor under him must be respons-
ible solely to the Director. He must be prepared to carry
out the instructions of the Director, and should not do
anything to impinge on his authority; “ -
A Member of Parliament is not, as such, entitled
to interfere in any way with any Department of Government,
A Member of Parliament is a representative of the péople
of a constituency., He may be a member of a party in power
or he may belong to the party that is in Opposition. 1In
either case, his position as a Member of Parliameat should
be exactly the same, Members of Parliament are not part
of the executive branch of Government, If a democracy is
to work properly and efficiently, the line of communication,
insofar as a Member of Parliament is concerned, should be
to the responsible Minister of a Department, or to Parlizment
itself, Our whole democratic system would break down if
Members of Parliament interfered unduly with Department
heads, or members of the Civil Service.of Government agencies.
Mr, McIntosh, in his own evidence indicated that
he had actually threatened the Director of P.F.A.A,, Mr.
Riddell, and the members of the Board of Review, that he
would lay a charge under The Prairie Farm Assistance Act
if they failed to pay the awards. 1In a release to the press
prior to the Inquiry he indicated that as the Act provided
that awards be paid in the month of becember, the Director
was in default, At the Inguiry, when it was made clear to

him that a great number of the awards had not even been
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processed by the end of December, he indicated that he

had in mind an offence under Paragraph 10 (1) of the Act,

which provides that:

"every person is guilty of an offence

--ssswhoi -- (a} violates or fails to
comply with any provision of this Act
or any Regulation.”

This provision, of course, has nothing whatever to ¢do

with what was being done by either Mr. Riddell or the
members of the Board of Review,

The fact was that both Mr, Riddell and the
Board of Review were suspicious of irregularities and
I find thgy had reasonable grounds for such suspicion,
and they would indeed have been guilty of a serious breach
of duty if they did not at least draw to the attention of
the Minister the facts as they had them, and undertake
to make a reasonéble investigation into what appearecd to
be irregularities in a great many of the returns that had
been submitteld from the Swift Current District.

Mr., Riddell decided to carry out an investig-
ation, and in fact had been instructed-by the Minister of
Agriculture, the Hon, Mr. Alvin Hamilton, to make an in=-
vestigation, On the other hand, Mr, McIntosh, Member of
Parliament for Swift Current-Maple Creek, insisted that no
investiqation-was necessary; that there was nothing but
suspicion and no concrete evidence of wrong-doing. He
took the position that no investigation at all should be
held at that time, and that the awards should be made,

and all cheques released, and then subseguently at some
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future time it could be decided whether or not an in-
vestigation should take place, and if so, by whom., Mr.
Walker was caught in the middle of this controversy, He
chose to support Mr, McIntosh rather than his Director,
and he took an active part in seeing that the wishes of
the Member of Parliament for Swift Current-Maple Creek
were carried out., I can, of course, understand Mr.
McIntosh's reluctance, as a Member of Parliament running
for office, to have any investigation concerning anything
within his constituency. But I cannot understand Mr.
Mclﬁtosh's lack of understanding with respect to the
obligations of Mr., Riddell, as Director, to make sure
that nothing improper was being dene by claimants under
the Act, nor can I understand the position taken by Mr.
Walker in regard to this controversy.

In spite of what had taken place, Mr. Riddell
did, even after this controversy, carry on with Mr, Walker
as Supervisor, but then further difficvlties arose in con-
nection with the Riial Hunicipalit? of Carmichael, No, 109,
There may have been a misunderstanding in;respect to the
instructions which Mr. Walker received from Mr. Riddell in
this regard, but it is hard to see how there could have
been a misunderstanding in view of the fact that the
Director made a special trip to Swift Current to instruct
Mr. Walker with respect to the matter. It is understand-
able, howevef, why Mr. Riddell took the action he did when
he felt Mr. Walker had again totally disregarded his

instructions,
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On August 5th, 1963 Mr., Riddell decided that

it was impossible for him to carry on efficiently with
Mr. walker as Supervisor of the Swift Current District,
He accordingly wrote a letter to Mr. S,.C, Barry, Deputy

Minister of Agriculture, which read as follows:-

418 Federal Bldg.,
Regina, Sask,
August 5, 1963,

Personal & Confidential

Mr, S$,C, Barry, Deputy Minister
Department of Agriculture,
Confederation Building,

OTTAWA, Ontario.

Dear Mr. Barry:

Re: George Walker, PFAA Supervisor,
Swift Current, Saskatchewan

For sometime now the matter of continuing with
the services of Mr. CGeorge Walker as P,F.A,
Supervisor for the Swift Current area has been
a problem to me.

He was appointed in December, 1962 and I was
not consulted in any way before his appointment
was made. Previcus to his appointment as super-
visor he worked as a P,F,A, inspector in the
office, acting in the capacity of assistant to
Mr, Jack Davidson, his predecessor, However,
since his appointment as supervisor he has been
most difficult, His utter lack of co-operation
with the Regina office is one fault, and his
disregard for myself as Director and Mr, W,F,
Davies, Superintendent, cannot be overlooked,

During my tenure as Director of P,F.A.A,, the
administration of the Act in the Swift Current
area has been most unsatisfactory as I had been
instructed that it would be more or less admin-
jstered by the supervisor for the area under the
direction of the local Member for Parliament.
This has resulted in a lack of co-ordination in
the administration of the Act, in that particular
area and the supervisor has not been carrying

out our instructions.
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A situation has now develcped in the R.M. #109,
where application was made by the municipal
council last fall to have inspection work carried
out in six townships in this municipality,
Inspections were completed in two of the townships
and 6A blocks being established therein. The
council agreed to withdraw their application on

~ the remaining four townships, provided that a1l ~ "
possibility of establishing any payable area in
these four remaining townships had been thoroughly
investigated by our field staff and we had deter-
mined that no payable areas could be established
therein, A copy of the letter advisiryg us of

the withdrawal of thehmunicipality's application
covering the townships in question was sent from
this office to Mr, Jack Davidson, who was the
supervisor at that time, on the 14th of November,
1962, However, the letter was filed awvay and the
townships in question were not cleared,

Recently the present supervisor, George Walker,
paid a visit to the municipal office in this
municipality and found the council in 3session.
The question of clearing the townships was raised
by the council and Mr, Walker advised them that
he would take it up with the Regina office.
Following his return to his own office he wrote
the secretary of the R.M. 109 to this effect.
After Mr. W.F. Davies, Superintendent, had discussed
the situation with me, I felt that no inspections
should be made in this area covering the 1962
program in July, 1963; knowing, of course, that
we would certainly not get a full disclosure of
the proper yields of the townships in question,
In order that there would be no misundersztanding
whatever on the stand taken by me, I cleared it
with Mr. W,R. Bird at Ottawa, and Mr. Bird gave
approval to my decision in this matter.

On July 24th I paid a visit to Mr, Walker's office
and verbally gave him very definite instructions

as to the procedure he was to follow in dealing

with the council in R.,M, 109. I instructed that

he was not to contact the council for at least

two to three weeks; the idea being to give them

time to write direct to the Regina office if they-
still wished to press action for further inspections,
and, if and when they did write to our office, I
would notify Walker and he was then to go back to
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the secretary of the municipality and explain

to him that we felt that the matter should now
be closed as, if the council were of the opinion
*hat any areas in the townships in question

were eligible for awards under the Act, they -
should have raised the point long before July,
1963. However, Mr. Walker again could not follow
instructions. He proceeded to this municipality
on July 30th and advised the secretary that I had
called at his office and told him that the 1962
program was completed and we were now preparing
for the 1963 prcgram, and no further inspection
work could be carried out in this municipality,

The council are holding their next meeting on
August 9th, and 1 feel when this report is made
to them there is a large possibility that they
may appeal to the Minister reqarding same,

Had the matter been left for two or three weeks,
particularly until after the council meeting for
the month of August was over, and the farmers
were then well into the 1963 harvest operations,
no doubt it would have died a natural death.

It seems to me, and I cannot think otherwise,

that Mr, Walker is endeavouring to endarrass me
and my staff at every turn and this last action

of his fully warrants that I ask for his dismissal
at the earliest possible date., I have discussed
the situation with Mr. Bird and Mr. Bird concurs
wholeheartedly with me in making this decision.

I regret very much having to forward a report to
you such as this regarding one of my supervisors,
but things have now come to a point where I feel
that this is the only proper dcticn to take for
the good of our whole organization, In view of
the lateness of the season and the harvest coming
in very shortly, should this recommendation be
acted upon, consideration will have to be given
immediately to appointing a replacement for Mr.
Walker, and I would be glad to be kept informed
of the situation in this regard.

Yours very truly,

d.5. Riddell,
Director.
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Upon receipt of the letter from Mr, Riddell,

the Deputy Minister wrote to Mr. Riddell in the following

manner:-

OTTAWA, Ontario
August 12, 1963,

Personal & Confidential

Mr. F.S. Riddell, Director,

Praivie Farm Assistance,

418 Federal Building,

Regina, Sask,

bear Mr. Riddell:

I have yours of August 5th with respect to
difficulties experienced with Mr. George
¥alker, P,F,A,A. Supervisor at Swift Current,

It will be in order for you to request Mr,
Walker's resignation.

Yours very truly,

8.C, Barry,

Deputy Minister,

Upon receipt of the letter frem the Deputy

Minister, Mr. Riddell got in touch with Mr. Walker by
telephone and arranged for him to come to Regina, and upon
seeing him asked for his resignation. Mr, Walker refused
to give his resignation unless Mr, Riddell would give
reasons for askirg him to resign, Mr, Riddell dié not
think he was in a position to give any reasons. After
reporting the matter to Mr. Barry by telephone, Mr. Riddell
received instructions from the Deputy Minister to advise
Mr, Walker that his services were no longer requifed, and

Mr. Walker was accordingly dismissed without any reasons




having been given, Possibly the reasons for Mr. Walker's

dismissal Blnﬁld havé.been given,

I find, however, that in view of the difficult-
ies that had been experienced between Mr. Riddell and
Mr, Walker, ‘it was necessary and desirable that Mr,
Walker be relieved of his duties to enable the adminis-
tration of the P,F,A, program to be undertaken in the

Swift CQurrent bistrict in a proper and efficient manner,
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PART IX

THE ALLEGED IRREGUIARITIES

Mr. Riddell received from the Bon., Alvin
Hamilton, the then Minister of Agriculture, a letter
dated January 21, 1933, enclosing a letter which the
Minister.had received from Mr, §,5. Schock of Hodgeville,
Sask., Both these letters have been recorded commencing
on Page 13_of this report, Because of the Minister's
letter a thorough investigation was undertaken by Mr,
Riddell with his Superintendent, Mr. Davies., By comparing
the CARs for the year 1961 with the CARs for the year 1962,
it appeared that there were discrepancies in the 1962 CARs
that had been filed not only in the swift Current District,
but in other areas ﬁs well, Mr, Riddell éaid he was sué;
plcious and thought an investigation should be madé, and
wroée the Minister about the matter, The Minister in-
structed the Director to proceed with an investigation,

As I have already indicated, inyestigations
were undertaken in other parts of the province which
resuited in the saving of many thousanéq.of‘dollars.m
In one municipality alone, some $50,000 was not paid
out as originally anticipated, because of theiinvestigations
'thch were made, but.in the Swift Current District, an ..
iﬁvaatigation was opposed by both the Magber“of Parliament
for:thefSwift.Curtentbuaple‘creek constituency and Mr,:. ..
Walker, the Supervisor.’ Neither Mr,: McIntosh nor Mr.
Walker thought an’ investigation.was neceasary. - They

todk*the:;ouitlon that thexe was nb'e?idoncé of
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irregularities -- only suspicions. They both were of

the opinion that the cheques covering P,F.A.A, payments

should be released immediately, without delay.

Mr, Roy Falbish, the Executive Assistant to

the Minister, discussed the proposed investigation with

Mr, R;ddell‘and Mr, Mcintosh over the long-distance -

B i

telephone (as outlined earlier in this report)., As a

result of these discussions the proposed investigation

was delayed, and Mr, Riddell was persuaded to make the

P,F,A,A, payments immediately,

Mr, Davies, in giving his evidence, said he

was absolutely satisfied that an investigation should

have taken place, When it was postponed, and the decision

made to pay the ﬁwards under the Act, he was so upset about

the matter that he thought he should look for another job,

Mr, Riddell, of coursé, was not at all happy about the

decision which had been made, and after returning to

Regina, decided to see the Minister who was in gegiﬁa

at that time, He saw the Minister arnd outlined the sit-

uatioh to him As a result of this interview, the cheques

were withheld

. I have already outlined under PART I tha olir-

cumstances dealing with this phase of the matter and just

what transpired sqbsequently, au;, B%ﬁgg}lwha¢#iggeed

‘good grounds for his suspicions, The paper investigation

uhich he had already nade_ipd£¢§t9¢-thﬂt,thar?s"9¥?rﬁ,

great many cases 1n the 8w1gt Current Diatrict wharo
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many of the 1962 CARs were not correct.- Actually 1

would consider that the“paper in%estiéh%id; diséiéséd '
something more than suspicion; the documénta themselves,
in a great nrany casés,'in_the absénce of some expl&hation,

indicated irreguiaritiéé.

Tt is hard to understand why an investigation,
in view of the information fn the hands of tﬁéfblreétér
and his Sup=r1nte“dent was 80 strewqously opposed. It
is also rather difficult to justify the action of Mr,
Faibish in ordering the payments to be made when he
apparently‘had no knowledge of the information 1n'the‘

hands of the Director which caused hin to feel that an

investigation should be made.

Undef'ofdinaty circumstances, even without . .. _.___
sﬁspiéions;‘it is desirable that there 1()e'-ir;\.rVes'il:i.éa;.(:ionxs.'=
from time *o tiﬁe; Evei? compan# re&ﬁiréé;én-aﬁdié: évery
Department of Goverrment is sﬁbject:éo_ah'aﬁdit'gr an in-
vesfigétidﬁ; Andits,'insbéctlons;;iﬁﬁeééiQaéians'Afé“made
B not because people are dishonest. They aré”hOttalwﬁﬁs
;madé'eveﬁiﬁécgﬁéevbf éuapicioﬁs; They‘ggggﬁgaertaken

for the most part in any public administration or any .

government Department to aasure “the effiﬂient

honeht ‘and capable administration of a particular
Departmént or branch of it. ‘The absénce of
réguldr inspections, audits or invéstigations is an
induccment f£of honest pedple to bedomé caréless, indif-
foient. instEioledt and ‘sonctines dishonest. '1f every:”
é"i{i‘i{é“ig‘a’11"rig'ﬁi: ' no on‘é "éh&&lff&iijéé‘? t";c‘s' "Q'aﬁ“fi‘ﬁ'éﬁéeéibn, :

1nveat1gated or being checked have the right or privilege'

ze s
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to say by whom such an investigation should be nade, and

the manner in which it should be undertaken,

But here in the Swift Current District, when

there was grounds for suspicioh and wore, the Director
-and his Superintendent were being curtailed, restricted
and stopped from proceeding with an investigation, and -
were directed to release the cheques relating to the -
subject.of the investigation -- before any investigation

was made,

One hundred and three farmers were summonsed’

before me to give evidence in connection with their 1962

production. .This represented only abouf ten‘ﬁercent.of

,,theLﬁatmars_inyolved 1n,the,proposad;1nvestigation:in:;_Mf_m;_m]

the Swift Current District., I have analyzed the evidence

of these farmers and a summary of their evidence is con- -

tained in APPENDIX “"B" to this Report. In fairness to

these farmers I have omitted to set. forth their names:

and addresses, but this information, if required, ‘can-be ..

secured from the transcript of their evidence, - . .-

The evidence given By these farners;indicﬁted
definitely”thai there wore a great many -irregularities,
This I think, wﬁl'brought‘about not 80 much. through-- %
lntontional dishonesty on the part of a great many of the

fanmers: but was caused by the very loosa and. 1nofflclent

manner. in which reports were taken; ' It appeared .that:
Inspectors were too casual:about the manher in-which they
pecufed‘thoir-reborta.wﬁuanyﬁofathdu did'notiattagptéto

--obtain accurnto 1nforuation. - They seuued to have the
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attitude that approximate figures were sufficient.
There was a tendency on the part of the inspectors and
the farmers alike to assist others to obtain benefits . "
under the Act through underestimatingy sields.
- It wag the responsibility of the Inspector to

see that everyoné who was entitled to a P,P,A,A, payment o
recelved 1t,.and also that only those who ware entitled
to receive a payment, received it. The former respons-
ibility appears to have been over-emphaaized. Farmers
have a tendency to assist each 6ther. Inspactors who
are drawn from a local area have a tendency to 4o the

" same, and although the whole program under the P.F.A.
Administration made accuracy of yield reports essential,
there appears to have been little attempt_in the Swift
_Current District to make sure that yields were accurately

reported,

As I have indicated in the introduction, the
amount payable to a farmer varies from $4 per acre for a
yield of not more than three bushels per acre to §3 per
acre when the yield is more than three bushels per acre,

but not more than five; to $2 per acre when the yield

exceeds five bushels per acre, but is not more than eight.

: Iﬁ addition to this, tﬁe report of one farmer in a block
or townghip might not only change the anouﬁt pa;able -
in a fownship or block, but might determine whether or
not any award whatever should bé paid, - The average

yleld in the whole township or block is the determining &

factor.

i

3

¥
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There is no question, fram the evidence sub-
mitted to pé'b} the farmers who géve evidenée,rthatiag
excessive sum was paid in_Awards to farmeis in the Swift
Current Supervisorf District, but it is impossible now
to know exactly what the proper awardﬁ shoﬁld ﬁav; ﬁeen.

1 was impressed with the frank manner in which
many of the farmers admitted the errors thay had made.
The, were anxious to correct the inforration which was

- wrong and to give as accurately as they could, their

proper yield for the year 1962; but I also realize there

were some who did not give the correct facts. In many

cases this was rot their fault, They simply did not know
now what the‘real facts were, Some of them, of course,
did not wish to give asx mucﬁ information as they coculd,

_ _The fact is, there is no way row of checking
accurately the CAR report of any farmer for the year 1962,
unless the farmer himself knows thé true facts and is pre-
pared to admit these facts. To determine the proper award,

if any, that should have been paid, it is not only neces-

e . Bary %to. eﬁtimatgkgheggg;ire yield of a farmer on his total

acreage, but it is necessary to apportion the yield in
many cases among different parcels of lard farmed by him,
In many instances it would be impossible to do this now,

It is unfoftunate that:the investigation
proposed by Mr. Riddell was not permitted to take A
place in the spring of 1963, Without shbjecﬁing ahybb&y
to publicity or embarrassment, accurate information ‘could
then have been obtained by qualifled experienced porsonnel
from the head office of the P.F.A, Administration. It is

too late now for such an investigation to take place.
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The 1962 crop has been sold. Another crop has bhee¢n
harvested. There would be no way of checking a farmer
who is not prepared to co-operate, or who is unable
through lack of knowledge to give accurate figures,

The manner in which the CARs were obtained
by the Inspectors created, in the farming community, an
improper attitude 1n.regard to the purpose and necessity
of giving accurate reports. 1In a great many cases, bins
were not checked as they should have been., There was a i
complete lack of care on the part of.Inspectors to secure

egssential information which resulted in almost induced

irregularities. Many people are careless, thoughtless
and indifferent, but most people are fundamentally honest.
They may sign statements without due care, but when properly

checked and confronted with facts, are prepar:d to admit

and correct inaccuracies. All that was necessary in con-

nection with the 1962 program was a proper checking of

reports. All that was required was a properly conducted

investigation on the ground to secure accurate information.
“A -
Because of the impossibility at this time of

obtaining the information necessary to determine the

proper awards that shOuld have been made to all farmers
in the district, I do not feel that it would be juat to
endeavour to obtain reimbursement from only some of the
farmers where adjnatments can be definitely established,
It wouid not be right or proper to insist on re-payment =;;
from farmers who are willing to co-operate and assirt the

Depattmént, when it ia impossible to obtain reimhursement
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from others where possibly even greater inaccuracies
have occurred, Irregularities in many of the cases were
to some extent unintentional and were caused by the system

itself,

This fact also must not be overlooked, An
award to a farmer in a crop failure area is based on the
average yleld of a township or area, .Hany farmers, who
furnished accurate information, received awards by reason
of the fact that other farmers gave incorrect informatiomn-
i1, thelr CARs, The amount of the awards were determined

by the P.F.A, Administration. In some cases, farmers who

received awards could be required to return a11, or part
of the awards received because accurate information was
not obtained by the Administration from other farme:rs -

in their area whose yields affected their right to an

. award,

Through no fault of their own, and without any
éttempt on the part of some individuals to deceive the
Department, awards were paid. They should not have been

paid without an investigation having been made, but they

were paid. It would be a hardship to some of“these Earmérs
who gave accurate information to now demand return of
money which they thought they were entitled to recgive.,,
For :his reason too, I d§ not think any at;empt shouid

ba made at this time to obtain reimbursement,

s, <t
2 o5 T
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SUGGESTED CHANGE3 IN THE P,F.A, ACT

It is not my responsibility to suggest any

A Ehanges which-ﬁiaﬁi be desirable in The Prairie Parm—
Assistance Act or its Regulationsl Nevartheless, ;fper
considering'the evidence before me in this Inquiry, and
realizing-the difficulties experienced in administering
the Act in its present form, I think it desirable that

-1 should make some sﬁggestiona which might be beneficial

in improving the P.P.A.A. program,

R . SIS L

The purpose of The Prairie Farm Assistance Act

a

1s'£o g;éhfmassistance to farmers within a muhicipality

or district which has suffered a genbrAI crop failura..

Thié principle must, of course, be maintained., I am not
”'satiéfiéd'that”P:Fﬁﬂ.h;“pdyméﬁté”éhd&ld be made on an T

individual basis, even if this could be done, Payments

should only be made if there is a crop failure within a

municipality or district of such a size as to constitute

a general Erop failure,

Under the present Act, the miniﬁﬁﬁ'diéi“iﬁat
can be considered a general crop'failure area‘is an en-
tire township. Under Sectidn 6 (b) of the Act a rec-
;aﬁéular Slock‘of sections havin§ an éreé.bf_nbt?iéés-h
than one-iﬁird of a townéhlp ané loéated ohﬁeide an éiigible
area, can be declared 9ligibie for an §ward as.though it

were a compléte township; but'lt'would appear that this

can oniy be done if it has been eataplished that there
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was a general crop fallure in the district by reason
of a crop fallure occurring in an entire township.
Therc can, of course, be added to a township under
Section 6 (a) additional sccgions of land that lie along
side of thes boundary of an eligible township but I doubt
if this applies to a block of sections established under
Soction 6 (L), This Sub-Section provides that such a
block of sectiors shall be eligible for an award, but
does not provide that such a block shall be considered to
be a complete township for all"purboées of the Act, The
provisions of Section 6 (a) and (b) should be clarified
and possibly the principles involved reconsidered.

Rain does not necessarily fall in a ;tthight

line. Hail sweeps through an area in an irregular way

_and_ flooding follows the contovr of tre land, not the

township lines, It séems to me that a nminimum area which
it is considered should cmnstitute a general crop failure
in a municipality or adjoining municipalities should bg

more clearly set forth in the Act, The Act should also

_provide that when it has been determired by the Adminis-

tration that such a crop failure has occurred, all furnars
within the municipalities or district affected who have a
yleld of eight bushels per acre or less shall be eatitled
to assistance, irrespective of whether or_not they are

within a particular township or block of sections or

‘attached directly to thése areas.
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After hearing the evidence from a number of

farmers, it is quite apparent that accurate 1nformation

.eoncerning crop production has not in the past been cb-
tained by the Inspectors, who are called upon to:complete

and secure the C.Aﬁs. Under the present eyntem the Inspector
is supposed to check the accuraey'of the farmers' statements.
It is, of course, in some cases difficult for him to do this,
There is the nixing of grain fron previous.years with-eurrent
crop production. "he inep ctor nust rely on the 1nforn-
ation glven by the farmer as to just “how much old wheat

he had in his granary before new wheat was dumped on top

of it, 1In addition, except in cases where there are two
crop failures in consecutive years, it is impossible to

know the number of bushels of old wheat previously declaved.

The evidence indicated that in many cases
Inspectors did not even measure the new productlon. In gw
any event, an InsPector would be required to rely on the ﬁ;
1nformation glven to him by a farmer as to what wheat -
was old wheat and what wheat was current production. ' %%

For these reasons it seems to me that the prnsent .

syatem of seouring CARs throuqh the employment of a large

number of 1nspectore is both urrecassary and expensive

and ‘serves no useful purpose fron the point of view of o

| assurinq accuracy in the report.

e i . 3

Two thinge I think must be done to secure
accurate reporta. In the first place as a condition i

precedent to a fnrmer having a right to eecure a P.F AA,
v ﬂ""'\:‘

award he should be required to set forth 1n hie Pernit Book .

i
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at the time he receives it an accurate statement of the grain
on his farm. A new Permit Book is secured at the end of a ciop
year for the coming year, and as‘the year ends on the 31st of
July, this would be before the current crop is harvested. 1f
a farmer disclosed his grain in storage on the farm at the
time he obtained his new Permit Book, and was bound by this
figure insofar as the P,P.A.A, program is concerned, then
little difficulty would be encountered in determining accurately
the anount of current crop harvested. In'addition, this would
be valuable information for the Wheat Board, because it would
give the Board accurate information as to exactly how much
wheat there is in storage on the farms in the entire spring
wheat area.

| Secondly, when a Municipality or the Province
makes an application under the Act for assistance under the
P,F.,A, program, all farmers in the area affected should be
required to complete CARs for the current year and to delliver
them to the secretary of the municipality or departmental
official concerned. In local improvement districts some
| special provision should possibly be mada, but in the case
ofrthe municipalities it should not be neceasarygfor these
CARs to be secured by Inspectors. There would appear to
be no reason why the CARs coul& not be properly completed
by the farmers themseives, and delivered to the secretaries
of the municipalities, It should be the responsibility of
the municipality concerned to see that all the CARs are
gsecured and submitted to the P, P A, Administration. The
cost of checking and undertakinq this work by the municipality

shouIHr’E met by the P.F.A. Administration.

e I LR



To ensure the accuracy of tne CARs submitted,

spot checks should be made throughout the municipality

by an investigator, or a team of investigators, from

the P.F.A.A, Headquarters, Such an investigation should
be undertaken by trained people who will make a proper
investization without embarrassment to the farmer, Every
form or CAR should have upon its face a statement to the
affect that such spot checks will be made, so that all

farmers who complete or forward these reports will antici-

:pate such inveatigations being made,

There is another matter that should poséibly

receive considerétion. This is the desirablility of pay-

'ments being made only in cases where the average yleld

of a farmer on his entire acreage is less than 12 bushels
per acre, and then only for such porti§ﬂhof éhat acreage
where the yield is less than eight bushels per acre,

In other words, &n individual farmershould not receive

an award if he has a 12 plus productior on his whole
acréage.

This provision I thirk, should replace the

present provision which eliminates a farmer frOm receiving .

i

a payment on a 12 plus section, even though his own pro-
duction ia much less than eight bushels per acre, The
effect of this would be to eliminate farmers who do not
require assistance because they have a 12 plus productuon
on their entire farm holdings, but to permit individual
farmers to secure assistance wwven though they may be sit-

uated on part of a section with a yield of 12 bushels per

acre or more,
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The effect of this provision too would be to
discourage an urge on the part of somc farmers to estimate
low yields because of some consideration for their neighbours,
and would at the same time cuftail "durping" of wheat from |
one farm to another in order to obtain a P,P,A.A, award
on a part of a farmer's land. It would aléo-tb some
extent eliminate the necessity of allocating production
among pgrcels of land in order tb obtain proper production
on each parcel,

There is a provision in the presernt Act that
should receive consideration, Section 7 of the Act providea
that all awards shall be paid in the month of Decemter,

It is not always possible that this can be done. The
evidence before me indicated that in 1962 there were many
CARes that had not even Been processed by the Supervisor
of the Swift Current District by the end of the year,

It is impractical to fix a definice date for the payment
of all awards, because the Minister must assume respons-
ibility for deterﬁining when all provisions of the Act
have béen met and awards can and shou;q be paid., To
avoid any misunderstanding, Section 7 should be repealed
or amended in such a way that would enable the Adminis-
£ration to carry out its requirement.

" Finally, there is one other matter that should
receive consideration, énd this.is the desirability of
eliminating from production maréinal lands on which crop.
failures continuously occur from year to year. Some of

these lands only remain in production because of the
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P.F.AA, program.r The farmers on them would be unable
to continue to farm these lands if they did not obtain
P,P.AA, awards, Lands of this type may be farmed and‘
kept in production for the purpos; only of securing
'P.F.A.A, assistance, which tends to prejudice the ontire
program and to create an unfair burden on the farming
community,

The Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration
iz charged with the responaibillty'df'rehabilitating
lands of this type, It would seem logical, therefore,
that the P.P.A.A. and P.F.R,A, Administrations should
be rore closely associated with each other in o;der to
eliminate on the one hand marginal lands from receiving
P.F.A.A. assistance, and on the other hand, to provide
alternate land uses that would broaden the base of agri-

culture and improve the economy of the affected areas,




- 58 -

CONCLUSIONS

(a) The evidence before mo indicated that the

T Director of The Pralrie Farm Auslistance Act was just-

ified in recommending the dismissal of Mr. George M,

" Walker as Supervisor of the &Swift Current District,

{b) The evidence before me indicated that there
were in fact 1rregu1arities in the Swifﬁﬁéurrant Super-
visory District, and that an 1nveattgatlonrehodld have
been &ado at the time it was recommended by fho Director

of the P,F.A.A,

{c}] The evidence before me indicated that the presont
system being employed by the P.F,A.A, does not tend to
secure the accurate informatioa necessary to efficiently

administer the program cutlined in the Act,

~ (d) The evidence before me indicated that the system

and the lack of care in carrying it out were responsible

to a great extent for the inaccuracies which occurred in

the Cultivated Acreage Reports submitted by the farmers,

(e} The evidence before me indicated thatrit is
impossible at this timé to accurately determine the proper
awards that should have been madg to all the farmers in

the Swift Current Supervisory District for the year 1962,

o
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RECOMMENDATIONS

(1) In view of the fact that ﬁany farmers in the

N swift—turreﬁf“area'received“awardSAwitﬁout;any—uroﬁqdoing
on their part, and-that it is now 1mpossibie to accurately

" determine the proper awatds’thaﬁ should have Seen made to
all farmers who received the awards, or for that matter
determine accurately as to whether or not a farmer shoﬁld
in fact have received a lesssy amoﬁnt, or no amount at all:
I recommended that no attempt should now be made to secure
roimbursement from any of the farmers who received an award,
for the reagpngﬂwhich I have more particdlarly set forth

on pages 49 and 50 of my report.

{2) I recormend that consideration should be
given to changing the method in which‘;eports are obtained
and received usder the Act and Regulations; and greater

care should be taken in investigating and checking the

accuracy of reports received.

(3) 1 recommend that considefation should be given
" to the feasibility of securing reports through the
gsecretaries of the municipalities affected by crop

failure, the P,F.A, Administration providing reasonable

financial assistance to enable this to be done.

R il e e b 8 b ¢
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(4) I recommend that consideration should be ' i
given to placing the permanent at&ff of the Prairie

Farm Assistance Adminiatggﬁ{gn_unde;mghg_QEY;l Service

of Canada, in order to eliminate t . possibility of .
_ political pressure being exerted on those entcusted

with the responsibility of adninistering the Act,

hY

iy 7
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ALL OF WHICH X RESPECTFULLY SUBMIT FOR YOUR B}FCBLLEHCY'B
OONSIDERATION, '

doemial
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- " June 10, 1964,




APPENDIX_“A"

THE ORDER IN COUNCIL

P.C., 1963-18%6

|

Certified to be a true copy of a Hinqte of a Meeting of the
Committee of the Privy Council, approved by His Excellency
the Governor General on the 21st December, 1963,

The Conmittee of the Privy Council, on the
recommendation of the Prime Minister, advise that
His Honour Judge Harcld wWalpole Pope, a judge of the
District Court of Saskatchewan, Moose Jaw, Saskatchewan,
be appointed a Commissioner under Part I of the Inquiries
Act to inquire into and report upon:

(a) the circumstances leading to the dismissal of
Mr, George Walker from the position of District
Supervisor of the Prairie Farm Assistance
Administrationy and '

(b) irregularities alleged to have occurred in
the processing of claims for benefits under
the provisions of the Prairie Parm Assistance
Act and the payment of such claims, relative
to the crop grown in the year 1962 in the
Province of Saskatchewan,

The Committee further advise:

1. That the Commissioner be authorized to exercise all
the powers conferred upon him by section 11 of the
Inquiries Act;

2, That the Commissioner adopt such procedures and methods
as he may from time to time deem expedient for the
proper conduct of the inquiry and sit at such times and
at such places as he may decide from time to time;

3. That the Commissioner be authorized éq engage the
Hervices of such counsel, staff and technical advisers
as he may require at rates of remuneration and reim-

bursement approved by the Treasury Board; and

4. That the Commissioner report to the Governor in

) Council with all reasonable despatch, and file with
the Dominion Archivist the papers and records of the
Commisaion as soon as reasonably may be after the

- conclusion of the inquiry.

R. G. Robértson,
Clerk of the Privy Council,

RIS |
5 [
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APPENDIX "“RB"

'SUMMARIES OF PARMERS' EVIDENCE

PRAIRIE FARM ASSISTANCE ACT INQUIRY

*

During the cbu;ﬁe of the Inquiry, 103 farmers from the
Swift Current P.F,A,A. Supervisory District were ;tbpoenaed
to give evidence to the Commission on alleged irregularities
in the submission and procéssing of claims for awards under
the Prairie Farm Assistance Act. The following summaries
of evidence are not identified as to the names and addresses
of the farmers concerned, This infofmation, if required,

can be secured from the official transcript of evidence,

’

PARMER NO, 1

This.farmar operates on a relatively small scale and 7
had only 65 acres in crop in 1962, He reported his yield
as 312 bushels when, in fact, evidénce_indicates it should
have been 383 bushels, This would adjust his yield per

acre from 4.8 to 5.8 bushels,

FARMER NO, 2

A cariy-over of 500 bushels of old wheat was incor-
rectly included in his 1962 returns, His 1962 yield was
also improperly measured. His production for 1962 should
have been 3313 bushels instead of the 2,005 reported, This

would zdjust his return per acre from 8.9 to 14.5 bushels,

FARMER HO, 3

The 1962 yield was reported as 645 bushela'ﬁhenzit
should have been 799 bushels. A carry-over of wheat

"amounting to 791 bushels was inéo;rectly'iébOrtéd.;JThbke.

R el s R .
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in fact, chould have been no carry—ovok. The correct yield
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per acre should be 11 bushels rather than the 9 hLushels ' g
reported.” This farmer admitted his error and stated that ?l

he was confused at the time his 1962 return was completed,

FARMER NO, 4

This farmer declared his production in 1962 to be
1,946 bushels when, in fact, it was 2,450 bushels. The

proper yield per acre should be 12 bushels rather than 9,7

bushels as reported.

FARMER NO, 5 S | 1

Wheat carry-over to 1962 should be 100 busheis rather
than the 1,000 bushels reported, This farmer reported
that his bins were inspecied by the Inspector, Differences
noted between production and sales in 1962 were explained

by the farmer on the kasis of mixed grains,

FARMER NO, 6

The declared production of this farmer in 1962 was i3
1,181 bushels when tﬂé actual production should have been :
2,670 bushels, This would adjust his yield per acre from

6 bushels to 14.9 bushels. ' <

.

FARMER NO, 7

The declared production of tliis farmer in 1962 was

1,413 bushels with an actual production admitted to by the

Bl i ween e

farmer of'1,688 bushels, This man's actual sales in 1962

"

were 2,603 bushels, He produced a receipt for $700 to
show that this value of grain, which was représented by -
700 bushels of wheat, was paid to him against a loan he

had extended in 1956, Oiving credit for this, the faimeér

ST SUORTIE IR S SURES A
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agreed that his yjeld should be 8 bushele per acre rather

than 6,9 as reported.

FARMER NO, 8 °

This man showed no carrs-over in his 1961 return but
nofed old wheat amounting to 1,100 bushels in 1962, He
explained that this amount of grain was received from the
estate of his father who had died, Tﬁis explanation seemed
reasoﬁable and his declared production of 1,817 bushels in

1962 should be considered ar accurate,

. PARMER NO, 9

This farmer declared a production of 2,014 bushels in
1962 against an actual production of 3,445 hushels, He
agreed that his yield should be 11.3 bushels per acre in-

stead of the 7.7 reported,

FARMER NO, 10 )
The declared production of 1,477 bushels should, in
fact, be 2,409 bushels, The farmer agreed that his yield

should be 10 bushels per acre rather than 6 as reported,

FARMEBR NO, 11

This farmer has 136 cattle and feeds them grain, Be
cause of this livestock operation it is now impossible to
determiﬁe the amount of grain grown in 1962, He had no
carry-over of wheat from 1961, fThe bins were not measuréed
at the time of the inspeétion. but he declared a carry-over
of 704 bushels in 1962 with a declared production of 1,151
buahels Sales recorda for 1962 show that 2 988 buahela
were aold, The farmer explains this difference by atgting ‘

ESlE A

-
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that he had made incorrect estimates of production.

FARMER NO, 12

On this farm there was an actual ﬁroduction of 881
bushels and a declared production of 454 bushels, This in-
creases the ylield reported from 4,5 busheiu per acxe to 8,8

bushels,

FARMER NO, 13

The farmer's copy of the CAR does not agree wiéh fhe
original copy of this document, It would appear that ad- '
justments were made in the form bylthe Administration after
the Inspector took the report, From evidence presented
actual production should ke 1,012 bushels, yhile 807 bushels
were reported, This will adjust the yield from 10.7 bushels

per acre to 13.4,

FARMER NO, 14

This farmer had a declared production of 1,991 and an
actual production of 2,391 bushels, His average yield should

be adjusted from 15,5 bushels per acre to 18.4,

This farmer declared a production of 4,467 bushe;e.
On questioning, the farmer reyised_hia figures to total
12,874 bushels., This would adjust his return from 9,5

bushels per acre to 27,3, This man received & 1962 P.F.A,

award,

FARMER NO, 16 |
In this case, the farmer admitted. that there was an:

exror in his.roiﬁrn due:to-thewwronq,sitq~being;qivonsfor
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his bins, The correct yield should be about 3,000 buahelﬁ
inatead of a declared yield of 2,090 bushels, This will |

adjust his yield from 7.4 bushels per acre to 10,7 bushels,

PARMER NO, 17

This farmer declared 1962 production to be 434 husﬁélé
while the actual pioduction was, in fact, 1,420 bushels,
The adjusted yield on this basis would be 7 bushels per
acre rather than 2 bushels, The error was blamed on a mis-

understanding between the farmer and the Inspector,

FARMER NO, 18

This farmer agreed that his production should have been
1,020 bushels instead of 820 bushels, This will increase

his yiéld from 10,2 bushels per acre to 12.7 bushels,

FARMER NO, 19

In this case the farmer agreed that his production for
1962 should be 1,128 bishels instead of the 604 bushels
that he reportad, This results in an increased yield per

" acre from 5,7 bushels to 10.6 bushels,

PARMER NO, 20

The yield reported by this farmer is incorrect and
this resulted from th; inaccurate listing of aéres under
cultivation. The proper acreage should be 320 rather than

355, This results in an increase of yield from 18 bushels
per acre to 19,9 bushels,
FARMER NO, 21

Thi;_fgrmpr_said that his wheat CaIfYTPXQrAfF9$;1?§};

should have been 1800 bushels, instead of, the 802, mahg;}gm i,

o




ghat he reportﬁd. ‘His yield, sales. “and carry-over fiqures
were reviewed with him and it would appear that there still
should be another 1,000 bushels of carry-over toladd to his
previous correction of 1800 bushels, At this time it is
impossible to accurately determine his production for 1962,
but it would appear that this production should be substant-

ially more *han he set forth in his CAR,

FARMER NO, 22

The 1962 CAR showed a wheat carry-over of 2800 bushels,
In view\of production and sales records available to the
Commission, this figure is not correct. From evidence a-
vailakble it is iﬁpossible at this time to determine the
exact production in 1962, but it would be in excess of the

amount reported,

FARMER NO, 23 : _
This farmer reported that he did not try to give accur-
ata information.on production or carry-over to the ihspector.
His wheat cargy-ﬁﬁer for 1962 should be 522 bushels ra£he:
than the 635 bushels reported, and his 1962 prodﬁqtioﬁ should
be in excess of 1,000 bushels as against tha 492 bu;hels re-.
ported, Thié would adjust his yield from 5.9 bushelq_per

aci: o0 12,7 bushels,

FARMER NQ,'24

Th1§ man did not seem to be well and wan, therefore.;
excused fkom qivinq evidence, It would appear that ha 13 a
rancher and is only incidentally concerned with whea;zg{?-

duction on a relatively small scale, He farnn 1rregu1ar1y

shaped fields where it is hard to determine accurate yields,

5
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The fact is, however, that declared producticn in 1961

was 1150 bushels with no carry-over and after selling 669
bushials in 1961 the farmer on his 1962 CAR declared old

wheat totalling 1,400 bushels, and 1962 production as 1,000
bushels. Sales in 1963 totalled 2,142 bthels. In view of
the fact, however, that this man did not complete hisrevidence,

no finding can be rpade in this cass.

FARMER NO, 25

This f#rmer's report was not properly checked by the
Inspector in 1961, There is no entry on the farmer's copy
in tﬁe space for wheat carry-over while the Iﬁspectof's copy
shows “no carry-over", This change was apparently made
aftér the form was signed by the farmer, The farmer says
his cﬁrry-over was 2,000 bushels, and if this is so, his

return for 1962 would appear to ba in order,

FARMER NO, 26

This man was very frank in admitting that his CAR was

completely wrong, He said that the figure of 1,400 bushels

There, in fact, was no carry-over and his 1962 production
should have been 4,106 bushels rather than the 2,043 bushels -
shown. The correct yield should, therefore, be adjusted fron

s

6.9 bushels per acre to 13,9 bushels,

FARHER NO, 27

This man freely admitted that he had not included his

landlord’s share in his return, and that his production

should have been 5,055 bushels rather than 4,567 bushels,
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This would qzve a ‘Yield of .10 bushéls per acre rerher than

" the 9 bushels reported

FARMER NO, 28

This farmer agreed that his correct production for 1962
. should have been 7,075 bushels rather than the 4,244 report-
ed, This would, therefore, adjust his yield per acre from

8.2 bushels to 13,8 bushels,

PARMER NO, 29

.. This farmer advised that his proper production in 1962
should have been 2,021 bushels instead of 988 bushels as re- -
ported in his CAR. This would adjust his yield from 6,1

bushels per acre to 12,6 bushels,
&

FARMER NO, 30

This man was ill in 1961 and did not complete his 1961
CAR, The 1962 return checks out :atisfactoriiy and it would
appear that the informatioﬁ given is correct, The difficulty
in this case apparently arose from the fact that the 1961 re-
turn gave only approximate figures, The information was sup-

plied by someone other than the farmer.

" FARMER NO, 31

“In 1961 this farmer had a good crop and some of it was
piled but not threshed, Subsequently. it was threshed and
‘this provided the addit1onal carry—over that was not reported

on the CAR. H;th this explanatlon it would appear that the

1962 CAR submitted by this man is correct, S W'WWr,W

v

PARMER NO, 32

“his farmer advised that his 1962 P.F.A, return was in- ~

correct, MHe said that he just guessed the amount and that

b i i s e

B e
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the 1962 production should be 1,830 bushels rather than the
1,024 reported. This would give a yield of 11 8 bushels per

acre rather than the 6,7 bushels reported,

FARMER NO, 33

This man iﬁdicated that his 1962 return was incorrect
and that.his proper production should be 2,032 bushels rather
than the 1,511 bushels reported., This would result in a y{eld
adjﬁstment from 12.6 bushels per acre to 16,9 bushels, The

farmer added that his bins had not been measured.

FARMER NO, 34

In this cae : the farmer agreed that his minimum 1962 pro-

duction should be 8,500 bushels, althoﬁgh the figures avail-

ot R e, R

able to the Commission would indicate that it was substantially

more than this, " He reported a crop return of 7, 906 bushels

e

L

On the basis of his admitted error his yield per acre wauld

—

be adjusted from 13, 1 to 14 bushels,

FARMER NO, 35 - - ’ -

This man freely admitted that his 1962 production should
have ‘been 12,018 bushels instead of 6,915 bushels as origin-
aiiy'iepdrﬁed.' This would result in a yleld of 19. 2 bushels

per acre instead of 10.9 bushels,

FARMER RO, 36

In this case the farmer advised the Commission that he.

had incorrectly reported his production in 196%f25#292~bu355£§;a_ 5

MMM—F —
In. facbff1t'§hoﬁiﬁ~have been 1,821 buahels. which would change =

‘his yield from 5 bushels per acre to 14 bushels




~__out in his return, He also agreed that his yield was 17 5
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PARMER NO, 37
This man reported that he had incorrectly shown his
1962 production as 4,099 bushels when, in fact, it should

have been 4,870 bushels, This would adjust his yield from

9.8 bushels per acre to 11.5 bushels,

PARMER NO, 38

This farmer sold some of his father's grain as well as
his own in 1962 Production and carry-over figures wqre very
"difficult to arrive at and it was jinpossible to reconcile an

accurate production figure for 1962,

FARMER NO, 39

Again it was difficult to reconcile the figures given
by this farmer as againétrthose shown on official records
and available to the Commission. His 1961 return indicates
that there should have been a carry-over of only 64 bu?helé.
but in 1962 he declaréd a carry-over of 2,070 bushels and
gave a production of 904 bhushels, incorrect bin measurements

appear to have resulted in part for the discrepancies,

4

FARMER NO, 40
farmer his returns now appear to be correct The additiOnal
old wheat appearing in 1962 over that reported was accounted

for thr;ugh the receipt of old wheat from an estate.

FARMER HO. 41

This farmer frankly declared that his 1962 production

ahould have been 2,643 bushels and not 1 140  bushels as set




- 11 -

bushels per acre rather than the 7.6 bushels reported,

FARMER NO, 42

This man indicated that his proper 1962 production was
4,229 bushels rather than the 3,110 bushels that he report-
ed. He agreed that his yield should now be adjusted from

9.4 bushels per acre to 12,5 bushels,

FARMER NO, 43

Records available to the Commission show that this
farmer's production should have been 1,926 bushelu in 1962
againrst a reported production of_1,276 bushels, This would
result in a yleld increase from 6.7 bushels per acre to 10

busheis.

FARMER NO, 44

fhis farmer agreed that his correct production in 1962
should be 3,390 bushels instead of 2,905 as reported. This
' would give a yield of 7.7 bushels per acre instead of 6,6

bushels. He advised that his bins were never meaaured or

checked.

."'f

PARMER NO, 45

The inaccuracy in this farmer's return resulted from
incorrect figures being given for wheat carry-over in 1961,
The production declared in 1962 of 1,689 bushels is appxoxi-

mately correct, Information available to tngAgomn;eeton'

would indicate that his correct yield was, in fcct,_1,813>

bushels.

 PARMER.NO, 46 _ .

" fnaceuracies in thie case resulted froa 1ne0“rrect figures
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being given for old wheat in 1961, Afcer questionind; the
farmer advised that the figure given for old wheat in 1961
of 1,900 bushels was not correct and that, in fact, it should

have heen approximately 19,000 bushels, Obviéﬁilyﬁ"ﬁé‘%tﬁ““‘““ﬁ“.
tempt was made to_accuratély determine the carry-over in

1961, His 1962 returns indicated a carry-over of 10,200

bushels with a production of only 5,748 bushels, Sales fig-

vrea for 1962 were 12,622 bushels, It is impossiblé to ac-

curately determine or reconcile the figures given.
FARMER NO, 47
There are obviously errors in the returns made by this

farmer, both in 1961 and 1962, However, production was very

low and would likely range between 2 and 4 bushels per acre.

FARMER NO, 48

This man indicated that he had a wheat carry-ove: in
1962 when, in fact, there was npne.‘ His total produqtiog,
however, is very little mofe than that set forth in bi§::97
tﬁrn and.it would appear that his figures were approximately
correct except that there was no carxy-over of old wheat,
~ His correct yield would not 11ke1y be more than 5 bushels

to the acre.

I’

FARMER NO, 4 o o L L il

’ This farmer freely admitted that hia 1961 and 1962 P. F.A,

RO S RS Ry P —

~———returns-were- eompletﬂl¥—1ﬂ5¢°“‘at°- He advised the cOmmis-‘w“m;

Bion ‘that his carry-over of wheat for 1961 should ‘have- been - - - -w€~
46,000 bushels instead of 4,000 bushels, as indicated, —He: -
advised that he was farming somé of his father's land as

11’88 his own, He said that his=fép6f£édEp:odactiéﬁ‘of”~




. nining the _sor_;_gs'_;_ figure.

seemed_indifferent_as to _the accuracy.of _his.return, He

- 13 -
2,344 bushels in 1962 was not at all accurate and instead
of a yleld of 12 bushels per acre, it should have been 20

bushels. This farmer did not get a P.F.AA, ;watd and

A
e
i
i
i
}
:

reportedmthat heland his father at this fime still had on
nand about 30,000 bushels of wheat, At the time of the
P.P.A.A, inspection, he was asked.hcw much carfy—ovpr'wheat
he had and he ad;ised the Inspector that he dia ndt know,
The Iﬁspector sugﬁested 4,000 busﬁels and the farmer re- .

ported that he had at least this much on hand,

PARMER NO. 50

This man , admitted that his 1962 production figure was fl
not accurate and was just ‘a rough estimate. Records availw

able to the COmmisaion show that he sold more wheat in 1961-

62 tnab his P.F.A. returns showed he produced or carried over
The farmer's copies of the CARs were not the same as the orig-
inals filed with P,F.AA. It is meossible to accurately .

detexmine the correct production for 1962 from the 1nformation

available to the Commission,

-

FARMER NO, S1

"In this case the farmer insisted that his 19¢2 production
was only 378 bushele. althoigh figures given to the Commission

would indicate that his correct production should be in excesn

of,aoq_buqhels. Thare appears to be no way of ancurately duter-

FARMER NO, 52 R LR R P S L o
" #hias man indicated that his pxoper production” for 1962 o

shotld 'bé 683‘bﬁshels”réthér than 198 busheéls; ab tebqrted:'

LERTCR TN S ES B TR St
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Th;s would adjust his yield from 2,6 bushels per acre to 9
bushels,

FARMER NO, 53

‘This farmer gave incorrect production figures for 1961.
1961 production should have beén 1;000 bushels rather thah-
345 bushels as reported, The farmer said that he thought
the P,F.A,A, Inspector was soliciting the bonus in 1961 and

put the lower figure down. The ~orrect production for 1962

should be 1 194 bushels. which 19 approximately that given by

the farmer, except that sead used waa not included.’

FARMER NO, 54

In this case there was no accurate measurement of yjelds
or carry-over, The farmer estimated his crop to be 20 bushels
. per acre in 1962, wﬂe“didnit.receive”a,P.F,A.A.,awérd and .
wasn't patticular about production figures, He said that the

information given on his P.P.A return was calculated by

e —

estimating an average yield per acre and then multlplying this
by the number of acres in crop. His bins were not ﬁeaﬁured in

‘ 4 NN : - ‘ -
1961 or in 1962,  In 1961, the carry-over figure given was nil

when it should'haVe been 3,500 bushels, It is impossible tO'j"""i

determine accurately the correct'prbdﬁcfion tigures for 1962

from information available to the fommissxon

PARMER NO, 55

“he eigure given for geain cersy-over froa 1961 by this
farmer ‘was based only on land he is now xarning, whereas his
1962 returns include ‘all grain produced, including production
from a farm that has ncw been aold He haﬂ mixed his pro~;
duction “and aalea from “*heése prope:tiea and it is not poasi-

ble for the Commiession to analyze the accuricy of hia raturns.

-
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FARMER NO, 56

This farmer advised the Commission that in 1962, thé
P.F.A, Inspector told him to make his yield less than it
really was so that P .F.A A, awards could be paid. The In-
spector was called to give evidence in this case and denied
that he maﬁe any such statemeﬁt. or any statement that could
be interpreted in this way, The Inspector, however, said ﬁe
never checked the carry-over of 1962 wheat, He=just took
" the farmer's word as to the number of bushels, - He'lboked aﬁm”“““;" 
only the bins that were indicated as holding 1962 production,
and checked no further. He advised that he did not check
the correctness of the stated carry-over and deﬁended‘on
the farmer to allocate tﬁe total crop to tha different parcels
of land that he farmed. The farmer agreed that his correct

yield should have been 12 bushels per acre instead of 8.2

bushels, as reported,

FARMER NO, 57

Tﬁis farmer advised that the carry-over that he reported
from 1961 production Qas incorrect and should have been 4,300
_ bushels, rather than 2,000 bushels. He said that he did not -

‘“‘——““aftempf—fo_reachnaay¥aeeuraté—iiqure_of_gld_uhgii_gt the_timé

“--his P.?gh. returns—were~£iled.,fcurrent.productigﬂmxgg_ sti~_

mated fromxacres planted and'hot'by measurenent,

~ 7 EARMER 89-758'“"—44'5' B R :
There was no production shown for this man's farm in 1962 -
because of hail, The figures given in his 1962 P.F,A. rqport
were completely.inaccurate.r With only 488 bushels reported

Pfoduéé&hin 1961,.éﬁq‘§ith nbnpfoagéﬁioﬁ iﬁ 1962, his total -
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sales for the two years amounted to 7,797 bushels, It
would appear that his carry-over returns from earlier yeafs
ware not correctly repurted and that this man did, in fact,

. - 3uffer a complete crop failure -in 1962;

FARMER Nd, 59

Bins were not measured and no proper inspection of
grain in storage was made at the time this farmer's CAR was
filed. The carry-over figure of 5,000 bushels shown in his

71962 report does not agree with 1961 figures which showed a

total production and carry-over of 4,859 bushels and sales
of 3,848 bushels. Sales in 1962 totalled 5,706 bushels,
but of this, according to the farmer, only 1,024 bushels
repregsented 1962 crop, There is no way of determining at

this time the correct production figure for 1962,

FARMER NO, 60

This farmer reported that the P,F.A, Inspector never
measured granaries or bins, The farmer says he calculated
his production from loads placed in bins and that the prc-
duction for 1962 was 612 bushels. The depth measurement of
the granary used for storage of 1962 production was filled

in on the CAR to make the correct figure for 612 bushels for

the 3ize of granaxy. The 1961 CAR shows a total production

“and carry-over of 4 864 bushela and saley in 1962 of 5, 513 f,m‘“m“J ¥
bushels, The 1962 CAR indicates a car;y-over of 5,009 bushels.
These figures do not accurately aet forth the facts as they
must have been hut at this time there is no way 0pen to the R

B
COmmission to determlne the correct production in 1962.

70 BE NOTED -~ In thée three preceding eséehj"-*f’at-méi:kf’s&,‘r“»g;:'*"
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and 60, were three brothers who each declared old wheat in

1961 in exactly the same ampuat - 4,000 bushéls. In‘1962

they aéain each deciar;d the same amount of old wheat, this .
time in the amount of 5,000 bushels, Th;é seems to be a

atrange coincidence,

PARMER NO, 61

This man is in business and found it difficult to visit

his farm on a reqular basis, He was possibly a bit careless

in making out his return, but it would seem that his 1962

figure is approximately correct.

FARMER NO, 62

In this casé the man harvested the grain himself and
says that the bins were never measured, but that he gave
accurate figures to the Inspector and that his production aé—
tually was 1,240 bushels as reported, This aspect of his re-
turn_aeems'to be correcf/but there would appear to be errors

in the carry-over figures of grain that he reported,

FARMER NO, 63

‘This faiﬁér rép&rts that hiéibiné were not .seasured, and

****v*thezewwas-ﬁustna rough producti on estimate made from the num-

ber of truck loads of grain that were. hauled to his granariea.

LEL b

From this, he arrived at the figure of 2,207 bushels for 1962

production, He gave the size and 1ength of the granary to

the InsPector and the Inspector filled in the depth of wheat
to make the correct number of bushels without measuring the

bin, This xough estimate of production would appear to be

approximately correct. but it is 1mpossib1e to deternine the )

¥
i
I
t
i
i
-
i
;

correct flgurp?, & .
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" FARMER NO, 66

. there were 4 500 bushels of grain on”t'he‘farm vhlch wasn't the
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FARMER RO, 64

In this case again, bins were nor qéasured. The wheat
carry-over figures from 1961 are not correct. The Inspector
justlasked the farmer the number of bushels and then apportioned
it among the different pieces of land farmad by the farmer, The
carry-over figure on rhe farmer's copy of the CAR is different
from that figure placed on the original copy. The original
copy showr a carry-over of 1,400 bushels and the;copy 800
bushels, It is impossible to deternmine or check the declared
production for 1962, It would appear that this production
would be considerably more than indicated on the ﬁ.?.h; return

in view of sales shown for 1962 of 2,836 bushels,

PARMER NO, 65

This farmer said that his 1962 figure for production
was more or less guesswork. He advised the Commission that
although his report said that his bins were measured, they were,
in fact, not. Production for 1962 would appear to be 7,478

bushels but this production must be apportioned to various

it e D

' parcels of land farmed by this operator and ‘there is no way

now of accurately making this allocation,

) In this case, from informa;#on.available po_the‘
Com@lésion,,ir would.appear that 1962 pro@ucrion should be .
in.ercess_of 1,000 husyelslrather‘than the 512mpnahekg_repgxtg9q_"_}
Thia‘would adjust the fammer's yield froﬁ 6 bushels per gqre'

to 13.6 bushels.

BR No 67 ) _ . o
L ﬂhe 1962 return appears to be correct. ih that:year

=< A

R T RPN S N

siign o= P sy Fom v A
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farmer's wheat, and which was not sold under his‘permit book,

This wheat should have been properly identified,

FARMER NO, 68

This reﬁért was faken‘eafly in the 1962 inspeétion.peri-
od and indicated that the 1962 crop had been severely hailed
Subsequently, more grain was recovered from the bailed crop
than was expected. The yield reported at the time of the in-
spection amounted to 686 bushels and was probably correct at
the time it was quen. However, additional grain gas hazvested
and the total production for 1962 finally amounted to 1,715
bushels. Therefore, the yield for 1962 should have been 14.2

bushels per acre instead of the 5,7 bushels reported. The

inaccuracy in this case was unintentional resulting from the

unexpected recovery 6%kgéaifiahiiméfaiﬁ"fféﬁ"thé”hailed*crOp.

FARMER NO, 69

. The farmer in this case indicated that the 1962-§roduetion

figure given in his P.F.A, return was not accurate, but was’

purely an estimatec. He said that he gave the inapector the

gize of his granary. his estimated yield, and then put in on

the CAR the height of grain in the granary that would make it

come out right. He advised that he did ot think it made any

difference what he put down fox old grain, He reported that

the proper production for 1962 should have been 3, 182 bushels

rather than 2, 1:3 bushels as reported Thia would. therefore._

adjust his yield from 9 8 bushela per acre to 11 3 bushell.

g;a_w- ot apd o ro
Thie farmer stated that the y;eldﬁ

1962 P.F.A, report, was not correct and should have been 2,720

_bushels instead 55_1,631 bushels, while the number @f acres

‘as set -forth in - hia o,
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farmed should have been 188 rather than 205, He gave an
estimate of production to ihe Inspector, and then gave ;ﬂe“
dimennions of the granary to the Inspector, The height of
gra;n in the qranary was fxlled in on the report to make

it come out right for the size of the granary. and thre pro-
duction figure that had been given. The proper yield should

have been 14,7 bushels per acre instead of 7.9 buéhQIB;

FARMER NO, 71

Thisé man was in the hospital at the time hig 1962 P _F.A. .
report was secured and hig brother endeavoured to give the
correct information. In view of this complicating factor,
it is not possible to determine the corxect production figu:ea

for 1962,

FARMER NO, 72
In tﬁis case, 1962 production appears to have been 1,217

bushels rather than the 576 bushels reported, but the farmer

. was unable to determine where the extra grain come. from. - It

would appear, however, that the carry-over of ol4 wheat de-"
clared is not correct, From the information availahlé to -
the Commission it was not possible to determine the 1962 pro-

duction with any degree of accuracy.

B E

PARMBR NO, 73

| This man doea not 1ive on his farm and he took production

fiqures from the farmer who did hia harvesting for him, The - =

figurgs_a;eﬁobvioualy wrong but it is impossible at this time

to determino‘the"co:rect.produotion;: Thé declared production.

_foi 11962 was -549 bushels with no.apparent carryeover ‘from1961:

-

{
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In 1962 a carry-over of 600 pushels was reported and salds

totalled 1,147 bushels.

~ PARMER NO, 74

A Wheat carry-over of 2,500 bushels was declared on
this farmer's 1962 P,F,A, return in spite of the fact that
all old wheat and production for 1961 appear to have been
disposed of, and.thatc he aold or sceded 4,024 bushels in 1962
with a 1962 production given as 3, 598 bushels in xesponse
to an examination of these returns the farmer, indicated
that his production fiqure for 1962 was just a guess, and
that his bins were not measured, The 1962 production figures
given by this farmer on his P.FP.A. return or his 1961 carry-

over figures are definitely in error.

FARMER NO, 75

This farmer indicated that his production €igure of

1,803 bushels for 1962 was just an estimate, Froum facts avail-
able to the commission it would appear that his production was
at IQEEt 2,700 pushels. Thera may have been a carry-over from
1961 to reduce thia figure somewhat, although an examination of
~ fecords or production for 1961 would indicate that this could

not be, Certainly production in 1962 was more than the amount

lndicated. and the farmer says that hlB 1962 grain ‘was Btorgd

in two granarxes, while the measurement ‘of only one granary is

jndicated in his 1962 return.

FARMER NO, ‘0 16

.. The 1961 P.F.A, return f:on this farmer jndicated total

'””’1951“p:0dugtion together _with carry-over from pteVi°U5 years of
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2,561 bushels with sales in 1961 of 3,413 bushels. The
1962 P.F.A. report filed by this farmer indicated old wheat
" amounting to 2,520 bushels with a production in 1962 of only
650 bushels. FProm information available to the Commission
it would appear that a large part of the 2,520 busheia of

old wheat was, in fact, 1962 wheat, but the farmer was not

prepared to admit that this was so,

FARMER NO, 71
This farmer was called as an Inspector in regard to the
statements attributed to him by farmer no, 56, His evidence

was summarized under the report given for farmer no. 56.

FARMER NO, 78

Thé 1962 production figure reported in P,F.A, returns
was only an estimate, this farmer advised. He stated that
the amount of 800 bushels declared as old wheat carried over
from previous years might have been a mistake, but that he

could not remember., It would appear that there ishno way of

determining accurately a¢ this time what the proper 1962 pro-

duction figure should be.

FARMER NO, 79

This witnass freely declared that the figures given in
the 1962 P.F.A, report were absolutely wrong, and that correct

production figures should have-been 2,457 bushels ag there was

no carry-over of old wheat to 1962. A production figure of
500 bushels was originally indicated on the return The yield

for.this farmer should be adjusted from 4 bushsls pér acre to

’fi13,3"bﬁéﬁélﬁf_ff_"_?m”'
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FARMER NO, 80O
some of the wheat gold in 1962 by this farmer was wheat ’

that he received for custom farm work, Bins were measured

1n 1962 and “the declared production- appears-to-be-corxggg.

pifferences in production and carry-over figures can be ex-

plained by wheat received for doing work for others,

FPARMER NO, Bl

This farmer's return in 1962 was not accurate but he was
not able to help the Commission to secure corract prcductign
and carry-over figures. Information available to the Com-

. mission was not sufficient to allow an accurate analysis of

the 1968 program of this farmer.

FARMER NO, 82

This farmer gave incorrect informatioﬁ for gfaiﬁ cériy-
over in 1961. 'He advised that he did this because he thought
if he gave correct jnformation it would affect his P.F.A. award,
His bins were not measured. production and carry~over figures
were rough estimates and the Commission has no way of deter-

mining the correct situation.

FARMER NO, é3

Tﬁis man said that the productxon figure given in his
1962 f.F;A. return was a rough estimate and he does not know
7if'iELiE_EVéh'approximateiy right or not. For one thing, he
did not include his jandlord's share of crop and this would
adjust his preduction figures from 2,008 ro 2,808 pushels,

There are.possibly;othe: inaccuracies as wall that the Commis~

sion did not explore.
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FARMER NO, 84

In this case it was necessary to measure piles of grain
n the ground to estimate 1962 production for P.F.A, pufpoaea;
The Inspector tried to easure-and-estimate the yield accurately,
put there appeared to be more wheat than he, in fact, estimated,
This error did not appear to have been intentional. The actual

production of 1962 wheat totalled 1,695 bushels, while the esti-

mate amounted to 1,436 bushels.

PARMER NO, 85

This man is an implement dealer and takes grain in on
jmplement sales, This added wheat confuses the recoids kept
for production on hisfprown land. The Inspector appeared-to

make an effort to get the correct production figure in 1962,

and it is possible that the estimate of 2,981 bushels is approx-

imately'correct.

PARMER NO, 86

In this éase, the bins were not measured in 1962 and the
allocation of grain production to various parcels of land,
and in fact._the total pxoduction of grain appears to have
_bée;hé guess, Tﬁe ¢armer accounts for obvious errors from
‘nis estimate by stating that his father gave him 1,200 bushels
of wheat, This wab not reported. In any case, his yleld ex-

ceeded 12 bushels per acre.

FARP“R NO, 817

This man said that ‘the figura given by him for 1961 &heat’
ca:ry-over in his P F A report was not cortect He alao said

that the carry-over indicated for his 1962 oPerations uas nPF
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correct,  He reported that his declared production in 1962

was arrived at by simply counting the loads of grain placed

in his bins andi:that no measurements of any kind wert taken,

It is not-posaib1e~at»this—timewfo:_the_CQmmiaqipprto dater-~

nine the correct figure for production in 1962,

FARMER No; 88

in thia case, the farmer reported that the filgure givgn
in his 1962 P.F.A, réport indicatiﬁg carry-over was ﬁot cox-
rect, and that it included his brother's wheat which shouid
not have been set forth in his return. He further advised
that his brother gave him this wheat oﬁ deals and transactions
that they had had, He did not know whether his bina were
measured by thé Inspector, but the Ipepector said that he
" would do this, although the P.F.A, report was conpleted be-
fore any bin inspection was made, Production was declarxed
at 5,925 bushels for 1962, which would result in 2 ‘yield of
18.1 bushels per acre. It would appear, however; that sales
were incbrrectly set out as 1,530 pushels and that actual
sales should, in fact. have been 2,030 bushels, which would

result in a yield in excess of 20 bushels per acre.

FARMER HO, 89
This man says that his bins were not measured. If his
P.F.A. return.is accurate, he could not have had a carry-over
of ‘1,000 bushels as indicated .He zepo:ted to the Commission
that he could not remember anything about calculating his 1962
rétﬁth, but he said that the Inspector took hia word for pro-
duction without measuring or checklng hia bins. It wouldﬁhe
very difficult to determine the correct 1962 production fig-

ures for thia farme:.




FARMER NO, 90

In this case. the farmer said that the Inspector appear-

‘ed to do his job very ‘Wéll -in~ completing his -1962.return, . . ..

He reported that his bins were measuréed and that his production. .
was carefglly checkedf However, on comparing his 1961 and

1962 returns, the carfy—over of 1,600 bﬁshela shown for 1562
could not be correct, but no explanation was given by theqfarmer
regarding this. He stated that ehe production figere ghown for

1962 was accurate, - ' oo He

EARMER NO, 91

The farmer agreed in this case that the figure given in
his 1962 raturns for production was not correct He.xepertea
that his bins were measured by him and that he gave the fig-
ures to the Inspector. He said that the Inspector d;d not
check these figures but took his woxd for them. The farmer.
aqreed that his proper p:oduction in 1962 should have been 2, 270 K

bushels rather than 1, 373 pushels as reported, which would ad-~

"Rt TR o R " e s T TR

just his yield from 5,7 hushels per acre to 9. 9 bulhels

‘;
:
i
:
:

PARHER NO, 92
Grain producteon. as atated in the 1968 P.PA. return, was
not correct, the farmer reported, 1962 grain was incorrectly
" reported as old wheat. ﬁis production should have been 2,924
bushels rather than 1,724 hushele as reported, which would adjuat
his yield from 5.2 bushels per acre to 8.8 bushels. - ' o
FARMER NO, 93
J;:?hg'lnapector did not measure Or check the farmer's'bins
in this ca'ee , + ‘He just rj.ada out the fom for t:'ho famer with

information supplied by the farmer. The farmex agreed that
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the correct production should have been 2,315 bushels rather
than 1,52) bushels as reported, which would change his yield

from 10 bushels per acre to 15,4 bushels.

fARMER RO, 94

Heie again. wheat producfion in 1962 was ldentified in
part as old wheat on the P. F b, return. 1962 production was
actually 3 470 bushels rather than 1,555 bushels and the farm-
er agreed that his yield was, in fact, 17. B bushels per acre

rather than 7. 9 bushels. as reported

FARMER N .95
This man says that his 1962 production should have been
5,435 bushels inatead of the 4,477 bushels reported, and that
his carryeover to 1962 was, in fact. 400 bushels rather than
800 bushels as reported to P, F.AA, His correct yield would

be adjusted from 7.2 bushels per acre to 9.2 bushels

PARMER NO, 96
. This man had in 1962 only a small production on 40 acres,
He agreed that. his proper yield should have been 8 8 bushels

per acre rather than 6.2 bushelg;_eeh;ego;ted.;

FARMER NO, 97 _
~ This man feeds a large number of cattie end“has extenaive

holdings.. He does not make a pzactice of selling wheat. but

rather feeds it to hxs livestock 1t is impossible to’ esti=— — &

matq:uhat:hge productionrfqr 1962 would be,

FARHERN 98 : ST
o The éiﬁééee qiveﬁuiehthie man's p,F.A, returns for:bOth

SR ] e b RS ST LT P Sy
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1961 and 1962 are obviously {ncorrect, -Plgures given ifor
production, wheat sales and carry-over for 1961 and 1962 do
not agree. In 1961 he sold in excess of 11,000 bushels of

grain'aﬁo in 1962 declared a carry-over of 11,000 bushels

with a production that year of 3,025 bushels, He says that
tib still nas about 9,000 bushels of grain on his farm and '
that he thought he had 4, 000 or 5,000 bushall on hand in

July, 1963. He further advised ‘that he did not flgure out

g-:.
?”.
E

any of his reterne at all, but that the Inspector did this
for him, The figqures given in his P.F.A, 1961 and 1962 re-

turne are certainly {naccurate, but it is impossible for the

commission at this time to datermine what the actual situation

was in 1962,

FARMER Nd. 929

Thie man.said that the carry-over declared in his 1961

- prP R~ retuEn - i= not correct, He advised that he sold -

everything he owned before the 1962 erOp and that there was"'“'

no carry-over of consequence to 1963 He thought that the

Inspector had meaaured his bins but he ‘was not sure of this

In ar;y eveht; he reported that his correct production for

1962 should ‘Thave been 4,755 pusghels rather than 3,014 bushels

which he reported . This would adjust his yield from 12

bushels per acre to 19 buehels, - He reported that he did not

obtain a P.F.A. award in 1962,

R NO 100

ram . &_ . |

d 'nat he had no carry—over from 1961 anﬁ

Thia farmer sai

that hip production for 196° ahould have been 3 711 hushelo

rather than 1.724 huahels that he repo:ted. He ag:eed that
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this would result in a ylield of 12,3 bushels per acre

rather than 6.9 pushels, aB reported.

FARMER NO, 101
in this case the farmer advised that he had a cafry-
over of only 200 bushels from 1961, and that his proper
oduction for 1962 should have been 2, 503 buahels rather .
than 1.934 bushels as reported in his P.F.A. return, This

would adjust his yield from 9,6 bushels per acre to 12 bush-

_315; .

FARMER NO, 102

-

This man repoxted that his declared production of 7,325

Coineis in 1962 was only an estimate. _He said that the In-

spectox did not measure. his bins nox make any further check -
on production. The farmer's COPY of the 1962 CAR was not the
same as the original'copy. The farmer's cOpY {ndicated carry-
over for 1962 as nil, while the original copy of the form
gshowed 2,000 pushels. This figure wasds jmproperly recorded
and it would appear that the farmer's production for 1962, as

reported in his P.F.A. return, is reaaonably accurate,

FARMER NO, 103
This farmer gaid that the carry-over figure shown in his

1961 P.F.A, returd wag not correct, He said that he thought

he should keep this down becéqse it might affect his right to

an award, In 1261 he declared a production of 640 bushels.

fn 1961 he sold 2,603 Lushels, and in 1962 showed 3 cacry-over
_ of 5,000 pushels, He aaid, howevear, that his 1962 production

gigure of 3,133 is correts and that hia aajes for 1962 of P

C 1.
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9,654 pushels is accounted for by reason of the fact that

the carry-over declared in 1561 and in 1962 was not accurate,

He advised that he adjusted his carry-over figure in order

to obtain the p.F.A. award, and then found that in view of

962, it was necessary for him to pay

his larxge sales in 1

income tax oh his award. obviously, there are some mistakes
in the figures given by this man in his p.P.A. return and it

oxr the commission at this time to accurately

n was in 1962 with respect

establish what his true situatio

is not possible £

to the P,F.A. progran,






